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VISION…to be global educators, 
for industry, work and life.
Our purpose 

We are global educators providing tertiary education 
for employment, workforce development and 
industry productivity. We build community capacity 
and enrich the lives of young people and adults 
through lifelong learning and personal development.

The Box Hill experience will:
› Deliver a service culture

› Embrace and value diversity

› Commit to quality and continuous improvement  
 at all levels

› Promote lifelong informal, semi-formal and  
 formal learning

› Provide personalised learning

› Ensure learners’ skills equip them for the job market

› Deliver on our promises

› Ensure employers trust our qualifications

› Have current knowledge, expertise and industry  
 relevance

› Provide a quality experience

› Provide great leaders and build leadership

› Care and listen.
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ESTABLISHMENT

A leading tertiary institution operating within 
Australia and internationally, Box Hill Institute is a 
registered higher education provider, a registered 
training organisation (RTO) and a non-school 
senior secondary provider. Accordingly, the 
Institute is licensed and registered to operate 
across the secondary, vocational education 
and training (VET), and the higher education 
sectors. The Institute prides itself on its ability 
to successfully deliver a broad range of quality 
vocational education and training services. It is one 
of the largest providers in Victoria with over 34,900 
enrolments in 2013. 

Programs
In 2013 the Institute delivered 718 courses across 
523 qualifications - including many delivered 
internationally and within industry - covering a 
range of short courses, certificates, diplomas, 
associate degrees and degrees.

Services
Box Hill Institute offers a range of services including 
industry consultancy, project management, skills 
recognition and employment services.

Campuses
Box Hill Institute has five campuses located in Victoria 
which includes three in Box Hill: Elgar Campus, 
Nelson Campus and Whitehorse Campus, and the 
Ceylon campus which is located in Nunawading. 
There is also an additional facility for automotive 
and prevocational studies located in Box Hill. 
The Institute also has a city campus, co-located 
with the Centre for Adult Education, in Melbourne’s 
central business district. 
The Institute has extended campuses around 
the world including: China, Dubai, Fiji, Kuwait, 
Malaysia, Papua New Guinea, Saudi Arabia, 
Vietnam and Singapore.

Specialist Centres
The Institute is home to three Specialist Centres 
delivering industry focussed training solutions:

 > Specialist Centre for Biotechnology Training, 
BioSkills 

 > Specialist Centre for Services for Small to 
Medium Enterprises 

 > Specialist Centre for Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT).

Plus two Centres for Excellence:
 > Refrigeration and Climate Control Centre  

for Excellence 
 > Bakers Delight Training Centre for Excellence.

Training Workplaces
Box Hill Institute operates a large number of 
authenticated training workplaces that are unique 
to the relevant teaching centres responsible for 
their operation.
They include: 

 > Aveda Day Spa
 > Bakers Delight Training Centre for Excellence 
 > Flowers on Elgar
 > Fountains Restaurant
 > InnovaBio – a student-run biotechnology enterprise
 > Lighting and Sound Hire (LASH)
 > Music Industry Business Office (MiBO)
 > Nursing Skills Centre of Excellence (NSCE)
 > Pets on Elgar
 > Salon on Elgar
 > Whitehorse Fitness Centre.

History
Box Hill Institute is the descendant of two  
Box Hill area technical schools. ‘Box Hill Technical 
School for Girls and Women’ was opened on  
4 September 1924, and on 2 February 1943 
the ‘Box Hill Technical School for Boys’ was 
established. The Girls Technical School was 
renamed ‘Whitehorse Technical School’ in 1971. 
Around this time the Boys Technical School 
separated its tertiary technical offerings from the 
secondary ones, the tertiary section becoming  
‘Box Hill Technical School’. Both schools were 
declared colleges of Technical and Further 
Education in late 1981. 
Whitehorse Technical School and Box Hill 
Technical School merged to become ‘Box Hill 
College of TAFE’ which was established by an 
Order in Council dated 25 January 1984, under 
the Victorian Post-secondary Education Act 1978, 
following an amalgamation with the Whitehorse 
College of TAFE. 
The Governor in Council approved orders 
changing the name of Box Hill College of TAFE 
to Box Hill Institute of TAFE on the 12 September 
1995. The name was changed again in the new 
Constitution (10 April 2013) to Box Hill Institute. The 
functions, powers and duties of the Institute are set 
out in the Education and Training Reform Act 2006 
and the new Constitution of the Box Hill Institute.
The relevant Minister in 2013 was: 
The Honourable Peter Hall, MLC, 
Minister for Higher Education and Skills, 
Minister Responsible for the Teaching Profession, 
Member for Eastern Victoria.
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University Partners
In 2013, Box Hill Institute strengthened its 
partnerships with selected universities. These 
relationships have created new pathways and 
opportunities for students at Box Hill Institute.  
The Institute’s partners include:

 > Australian Catholic University
 > Deakin University
 > Latrobe University
 > Monash University.

PARTNERSHIPS

Box Hill Institute understands the 
importance of creating strong partnerships 
and collaborations and has recently 
developed and strengthened several key 
strategic alliances.

Other Educational 
Alliances
Box Hill Institute has an international alliance with 
the Global Education Network comprising:

 > Institute of Technical Education (Singapore)
 > Kirkwood Community College (USA)
 > Southern Alberta Institute of Technology 

(Canada).
The Post Secondary International Network (PIN) is 
an alliance of postsecondary institutions dedicated 
to the continuance of international education and 
understanding through a sharing of experience.
We will be leaders in our fields and create unique 
points of difference that set what we do apart from 
other education and training providers.
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International Partnerships

Community Colleges for 
International Development
Box Hill Institute is a Board member of Community 
Colleges for International Development (CCID). 
The CCID is a consortium of 160 two-year colleges 
in the United States and twelve other countries. It 
is the pre-eminent two-year college organisation 
in the United States working on all aspects of 
global vocational/professional education, and 
training overseas. CCID provides an international 
network for community colleges to further their 
internationalisation initiatives and to enhance the 
development of a globally competent workforce for 
the communities they serve.

University of Cambridge 
ESOL Examination
As part of an agreement with the University of 
Cambridge ESOL Examinations, Box Hill Institute 
is working towards the delivery of language 
assessment services in Australia and around the 
world. The alliance aims to further advance the 
delivery of testing and assessment services in 
Australia and globally, including without limitation, a 
strategic collaboration for delivery and assessment 
of the Occupational English Test.

Off-shore vocational and 
education training
Box Hill Institute provides education and training 
in a range of international locations including 
campuses and education partners in Melbourne, 
Singapore, Macau, Kuwait, Dubai, Fiji, Samoa, 
Papua New Guinea, Vanuatu, Vietnam, Malaysia, 
Sri Lanka, and China.

International clients
Box Hill Institute works with a diverse range 
of international clients to build their workforce 
capability. In 2013, the Institute provided training 
and services to clients based in various countries 
including Cambodia, China, Macau, Singapore, 
Saudi Arabia and the Pacific region.
Being recognised as the leading institute in 
Technical Vocational Education Training (TVET) 
strengthening programs, Box Hill Institute has been 
engaged by a number of government agencies to 
provide ongoing teachers’ training and education 
leadership/management programs to support their 
TVET capacity building initiatives. In 2013, over 
200 TVET teachers and leaders completed their 
accredited and non-accredited training programs 
with our Institute.

School partnerships
Box Hill Institute has partnerships with over 100 
secondary colleges. Arrangements include the 
provision of Vocational Education Training in 
Schools (VETiS), Pathways Program (formerly 
Growth and Pathways) and Victorian Certificate 
of Applied Learning (VCAL) programs. These 
programs are provided both at Box Hill Institute 
and within the school environment. The Institute 
also has a unique relationship with the Whitehorse 
Pathways Alliance, creating affiliations between 
Box Hill Institute and schools within and around the 
City of Whitehorse.

Community partnerships
Box Hill Institute has a strong commitment to the 
eastern suburbs of Melbourne and, as part of its 
corporate citizenship agenda, works with a number 
of community-based organisations.
In 2013, the Institute continued to work closely 
with the Cities of Manningham and Whitehorse, 
Gateway Local Learning and Employment Network 
(LLEN), local Rotary Club districts and other 
community partners on a range of education and 
training initiatives. See ‘Leaders in Relationships’ 
for more detail on our community partnerships.

Industry partnerships
A key to Box Hill Institute’s success is the range 
of our industry partnerships. Box Hill Institute 
works extensively with industry partners to 
service industry training needs and to obtain 
input into the design of course content. During 
2013, a significant number of new programs were 
developed in response to industry demand. See 
‘Leaders in Relationships’ for more detail on our 
industry partnerships.

Alumni Program
The Institute’s alumni program ensures contact is 
kept with students as they progress through their 
careers. The Institute’s alumni presence grew 
in 2013 with over 1300 students joining, adding 
to the established Australian based group and 
contributing to the development of the international 
chapters. At the end of 2013 a communications 
program was started to develop and strengthen the 
alumni community. The program aims to improve 
communications with the alumni network through 
traditional and social media.
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A YEAR OF AWARDS

The outstanding efforts and 
achievements of Box Hill Institute 
staff and students were recognised 
through a number of prestigious 
awards during the year.

These awards recognise the quality in teaching and 
training and are awarded externally by government 
or industry-based associations.

They celebrate the accomplishments of teams 
and individuals who make up the Box Hill Institute 
community. They also recognise the value and 
contribution made by our students and alumni in  
a range of different industries. 

The goal of Box Hill Institute is to provide an 
environment that encourages and develops the 
leaders of tomorrow. 

The Institute’s Student of the Year Awards Program, 
which has been running for over 15 years, 
recognises students who have demonstrated 
outstanding achievement in their area of study. 
These awards are recognised by industry and help to 
propel students’ career and employment prospects.
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Recognition of teams and the Institute
Winner: International Training Provider of the Year – Australian Training Awards 2103
Winner: eLearning Excellence Awards – eLearning Team of the Year
Winner: eLearning Excellence Awards – Industry Excellence Award - VET Sector 
eLearning for the Teacher Dashboards
Winner: Learn Local Awards – Excellence in Language, Literacy and Numeracy Provision
Winner: Cisco Academy – Best Practice Award for the Asia Pacific region

Industry Recognition of Students
Winner: International Student of the Year – Higher Education 
Winner: Premier’s Award – International Student of the Year 
Winner: Building Design Awards – Building Designers Association of Victoria
Winner: WorldSkills regional competition for Carpentry – Silver Award
Winner: WorldSkills regional competition for Refrigeration – Gold, Silver and  
Bronze Awards
Winner: WorldSkills regional competition for Automotive – Gold and Silver Awards
Winner: Fashion Awards Australia – Best New Emerging Designer
Winner: Fashion Awards Australia – Racewear
Bronze Award: Southern Cross Packaging Awards – Tinplate Section 
Finalist: Learn Local Awards – Outstanding Pre-accredited Learner

Institute Student Awards
 > Box Hill Institute 2013 Vocational Student of the Year:  

Iris Radovic, Advanced Diploma of Sound Production
 > Box Hill Institute Enterprising Graduate of the Year:  

Kashif Bouns, Advanced Diploma of Accounting
 > Box Hill Institute Pathways/VET in Schools Student of the Year:  

Sarah Adams, Certificate II in Automotive Studies (Pre-Vocational)
 > Box Hill Institute Trainee of the Year:  

Emily Klopfer, Certificate III in Hairdressing
 > Alan Broadhead Apprentice of the Year Awards:  

Jin Kim Woo, Certificate III in Automotive Mechanical Technology (Specialising 
in Light Vehicle) – First Year category & Bradley Spitzer, Certificate III in 
Electrotechnology Electrician – Second Year category

 > Box Hill Institute Apprentice of the Year:  
Simone Beales, Certificate III in Hairdressing
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CHAIR’S REPORT

From my appointment as Chair of the Board 
of Box Hill Institute in April 2013, the Board’s 
focus has been on the implementation of new 
governance arrangements for the Institute and the 
establishment of a new Strategic Plan which sets 
the foundation for the future of the organisation.

The issuance of a new Constitution for the Institute, 
and new Strategic Planning and Commercial 
Guidelines for TAFE Institutes set a significant 
program of work for the Board including the review 
and development of new strategies to ensure a 
sustainable future for the organisation.
The development of a new Strategic Plan for the 
Box Hill Institute Group was a significant focus 
of the Board and Management in 2013. The plan 
confirms the Institute’s vision to be educators for 
industry, work and life; and its purpose - providing 
tertiary education employment, workforce 
development and industry productivity, to build 
community capacity and enrich the lives of young 
people and adults through lifelong learning and 
personal development.
Our success will be dependent on meeting the 
needs of our students, learners and industry clients 
through lifelong education opportunities. The 
management team has been charged by the Board 
with implementing a number of key projects to 
deliver on three main strategic initiatives:

 > Educational quality and effectiveness – a 
critical part of our market success will be the 
quality of our VET, Higher Education, post 
compulsory secondary education and adult 
learning translating into positive employment 
and life outcomes for our students. The quality 
of the student, learner and industry client 
experience will be critical competitive elements 
in demonstrating our continued success.

 > Business transformation – to remain successful 
in a competitive and dynamic market we will 
transform our business through increasing 
productivity and targeting a range of profitable 
growth opportunities. We will also implement 
a new Strategic Asset Master Plan that 
optimises returns from our current footprint and 
maximises asset utilization for the future, whilst 
achieving the requirements of the Victorian 
Government strategic planning guidelines.

 > Organisational change and innovation – 
which focuses on a customer-centric model 
that promotes innovation, productivity and 
continuous improvement to align with the needs 
of industry and all of our people.
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All of this is building on the strong and outstanding 
record of achievement of Box Hill Institute and its 
reputation as an innovative organisation. We want 
to ensure that we continue as leaders in the ever 
changing and challenging landscape of education 
and training.
As evidenced throughout this annual report, the 
Institute performed well in its achievement against 
its objectives for the year.
Initiatives and achievements in 2013 of which the 
Board and the Institute are especially proud include:

 > The Institute being awarded International 
Training Provider of the Year for 2013 at the 
National Training Awards

 > The strengthening of our educational 
partnerships with selected universities. These 
relationships have created new pathways and 
opportunities for students at Box Hill Institute

 > The completion of the new, ultra-modern 
$34M Integrated Technology Hub with key 
involvement of industry partners.

In my first year as Chair, I was delighted to have 
the opportunity to attend different industry awards 
nights and graduations where our learners are 
recognised for their achievements. Seeing their joy 
and pride together with sharing these events with 
their family and friends, is inspirational and very 
rewarding, helping us all strive for even more within 
Box Hill Institute. 

On behalf of the Board I would like to thank the 
management and staff of the Institute on a solid 
year’s achievement - their hard work, particularly in 
this year of significant change, is appreciated.
I would like to acknowledge and thank my fellow 
Board members for their hard work and the 
diligence they have demonstrated in exercising 
their duties during 2013.
I would also like to acknowledge the contribution 
of those Board Directors who left the Board during 
the year – Phillip Belcher, Ian Hind, Michael 
Zangmeister and Noelene Duff, together with  
John Maddock who completed his contract as 
Chief Executive Officer at the end of 2013. In 
addition I welcome Phillip Davies who joined the 
Board in 2013 and thank him for his contribution to 
the Institute.
There is important work ahead over the coming 
years and I look forward with my fellow Directors 
to providing continued stewardship to ensure the 
success of the Institute in implementing our new 
Strategic Plan.

Ms Suzanne Ewart 
Board Chair 

27 February 2014
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CEO’S REPORT

2013 was a transformational year at Box Hill 
Institute with major changes taking place 
including a new Board, a new Constitution, 
the development of a new Strategic Plan 
and new Commercial Guidelines. 

All this arms the Institute with a revitalised vision 
and goals, and a strong, agile approach ready 
to meet the requirements of the educational 
landscape as it evolves. 
I am delighted to report that during 2013 Box Hill 
Institute continued to build on its reputation as a 
quality provider of education and training.
Our excellent track record of winning awards was 
boosted yet again in 2013. Among the award 
highlights were:

 > The Institute was named International 
Training Provider of the Year at the 20th 
Australian Training Awards. This was a 
tremendous achievement and a testament to 
staff and managements’ commitment to the 
organisation’s international vision

 > Our Blended e-Learning Solutions team was 
successful at the eLearning Industry Council 
awards, winning Team of the Year and the 
Industry Excellence Award – VET Sector for 
Teacher Dashboards 

 > Sound production student Iris Radovic was a 
Vocational Student of the Year finalist in the 
Victorian Training Awards 

 > Huong Dang Thi won the ‘Premier’s Award 
– International Student of the Year – Higher 
Education’ and the ‘Victorian International 
Student of the Year’ in the Victorian International 
Education Awards 

 > Refrigeration and Air Conditioning students 
scored a clean sweep in the World Skills 
Australia state competition with first, second 
and third prizes. 

A major highlight in terms of our facilities and 
infrastructure development was the completion of 
the Integrated Technology Hub (ITH) - the first of 
its kind in Australia. The ITH will operate with strong 
industry connections and comprises some of the 
most modern and environmentally sustainable 
training facilities available in Australia. 
The ITH will be home to the Refrigeration and 
Climate Control Centre of Excellence and will 
provide the main training facilities for the air 
conditioning and allied industries as well as 
the building services and electro-mechanical 
technologies industries.
Congratulations to everyone who has worked to 
bring this world-class project to fruition.
On the course development front, our application 
for accreditation for the Master of International 
Music Business and Graduate Diploma of 
International Music Business were accredited, 
making us the first TAFE to offer a TEQSA 
accredited Master degree level qualification. 
We also received TEQSA accreditation for the 
following qualifications:

 > Master of Network Security
 > Graduate Diploma of Network Security
 > Bachelor of Library and Information 

Management
 > Diploma of Library and Information 

Management.
These qualifications, together with the Master 
of International Music Business make us the 
first Australian TAFE with two Master degrees 
accredited by TEQSA.
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Other new Box Hill courses recently accredited 
include:

 > Graduate Diploma in Early Childhood Teaching,
 > Bachelor of Fashion Merchandising 
 > Associate Degree of Fashion Merchandising 
 > Advanced Diploma of Engineering Technology.

These new courses have been established to meet 
the needs of the marketplace and I would like to 
thank all involved in making it happen.
Paramount to the ongoing success of the Institute 
is utilising and building on our strong industry links, 
partnerships and networks. Significant partnership 
progress was made this year including: 

 > Establishment of the CITRIX Academy
 > The globalisation of our Occupational English 

Test by joining forces with Cambridge 
University

 > The signing of an MOU with aged care provider 
Benetas

 > Working closely with the AMCA to establish 
the Refrigeration and Climate Control Centre 
of Excellence, housed in the Integrated 
Technology Hub

 > Furthering pathways with our university partners 
in areas like nursing and engineering.

In conclusion, I would like to express my thanks 
to the Box Hill Institute Board Directors for their 
ongoing support and commitment, also to the 
Institute management and staff for their work 
during the year. As well, I wish to acknowledge our 
previous CEO John Maddock who was farewelled 
after 14 years with Box Hill Institute. 
Our new Strategic Plan will, I believe, allow us to 
move Box Hill Institute to even greater success 
through increased focus, at all levels of the 
organisation, on objectives we’ve identified will 
deliver the best results for the Institute, for our 
learners and our partners.
In rolling out the plan, the Board has issued 
management with the implementation of 27 key 
initiatives over the length of the plan with several 
projects prioritised for 2014. I look forward to 
building momentum towards our goals and to 
working with the Board and all staff to making our 
strategic vision and mission a reality.
Together, the work we do makes a difference in the 
lives of many learners across a wide spectrum.

Mr Joe Piper 
Interim Chief Executive Officer 

27 February 2014



12

2013 INTERNATIONAL TRAINING PROVIDER OF THE YEAR

ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2013

Teaching and Learning

Achievements
In 2013 Box Hill Institute:

 > Won a 12 month tender with Goodyear Dunlop  
to offer the national training for Certificate II  
in Tyre Fitting (also encompassing First Aid).  
This partnership will see Box Hill Institute 
teachers completing assessments at over 220 
stores nationally

 > Rewarded high achieving automotive students 
with Hot Laps in the SP Tools Erebus Mercedes 
Benz V8 supercar at Calder Raceway. The Hot 
Laps were provided by Box Hill Institute’s tool 
provider, SP Tools

 > Received government funding for a study 
program to send a group of Vet Nursing students 
to the U.K. to conduct a research assignment. 
Students were able to visit a number of animal 
wefare facilities including Walthams Centre for Pet 
Nutrition, the Battersea Dog and Cat Home, Bristol 
University, the Royal Veterinary College, the Bionic 
Vet, the Animal Health Trust and St Tiggywinkles 
Wildlife Hospital

 > Sent teacher, Susan Morris, to Europe to study 
energy efficiency and sustainable building. Susan, 
who was granted an international scholarship, 
studied Europe’s take on ‘problem based learning’ 
and implemented her findings into our local 
course delivery. This study resulted in an article 
write up in the Building Designers Association of 
Victoria magazine

 > Had a number of VETiS students participate in the 
regional Worldskills Australia competition, with two 
of our carpentry students going on to win awards 
at the State finals

 > ICT teacher David Brooks was awarded a 
fellowship with HESG over 11 other applicants. 
This will be used to research cloud and 
virtualisation computing to maintain the Institute’s 
leadership in this area and support the Australian 
ICT industry

 > Sent several plumbing students to Canada  
for three weeks as part of the GEN student 
exchange program

 > Received students from Denmark as part of our 
exchange program with Denmark’s VIA University 
College. Students came to Box Hill Institute for  
a full semester to study Australian building  
design standards

 > Final year fashion students were chosen to 
participate in the student runway event at the  
2013 Melbourne Spring Fashion Festival

 > Hosted the state final of the AUS-TAFE culinary 
trophy in September. Hospitality student, Natasha 
De Barba was the overall winner in the category.
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Innovation

Achievements
In 2013 Box Hill Institute:

 > Partnered with the AMCA to create the 
Refrigeration and Climate Control Centre of 
Excellence (RCCC), which will be housed in the 
new Integrated Technology Hub. Minister Peter 
Hall attended the launch

 > Leveraged our relationship with the Australian 
Veterinary Chiropractic Association (AVCA) to 
develop and deliver a Graduate Diploma in Animal 
Biomechanical Medicine – the only course of its 
kind in the Southern Hemisphere

 > Became the first TAFE in Australia to offer a Master 
degree when the Institute launched the Master of 
International Music Business. TESQA accreditation 
was also given for a number of other qualifications 
including a second Master degree, the Master of 
Network Security. This brought the Institute’s total 
offering of degrees to over 20

 > Signed a contract with Sypharma to become a 
‘Company in Residence’. This mutually beneficial 
agreement will see Sypharma employees working 
from our labs and teaching Institute classes 

 > Launched the first Australian Citrix IT Academy. 
This exciting development has enabled Box Hill 
Institute to access teaching material for professional 
certification in Cloud Computing. Head of Citrix U.S, 
Dan Myers attended the launch event

 > Made significant improvements to the Bachelor 
of Computing Systems. This degree now offers 
two majors – Cloud Computing and Networking. 
Also introduced a new ‘cloud computing’ subject 
into the Bachelor of Computer Systems, which 
provides students with a EMC certificate as part of 
their degree

 > Launched the Advanced Diploma of Surface 
Extraction Operations. This course is unique in its 
highly flexible approach to delivery in order to suit 
the needs of clients nationally 

 > Developed a new course in Mechanical 
Engineering Services. This broadens our course 
offer to students and will attract new industry 
clients to the Institute 

 > Students were given the opportunity to work on 
a series of four ‘real life’ design projects. The 
briefs were received from and assessed by our 
industry partners, including City of Manningham, 
City of Whitehorse, City of Port Phillip and several 
construction and architectural companies – 
providing students with a unique and important 
‘real world’ experience.

International Activities

Achievements
In 2013 Box Hill Institute:

 > Completed a three month project to deliver  
a certificate IV in TAE to two groups of  
Saudi teachers

 > Conducted numerous programs teaching Chinese 
students about vocational and teacher education in 
Australia, both locally and overseas

 > Continued to support KOTO (Know One, Teach 
One) in Vietnam to train disadvantaged youth for 
the hospitality industry. KOTO is a not-for-profit 
hospitality training organisation that has trained 
approximately 400 disadvantaged Vietnamese 
youths in Hanoi over the past 10 years

 > Worked with a Singaporean training provider to set 
up delivery in Singapore of the dual qualification 
Certificate III in Aged Care and Certificate III in 
Home and Community Care 

 > Carpentry teachers and apprentices joined with 
electrical apprentices to construct sheltered 
accommodation for homeless women in Timor, as 
part of a Rotary Community project.
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Relationships 

Achievements
In 2013 Box Hill Institute:

 > Partnered with Benetas, a leading not-for-profit 
provider of aged care services, to offer quality, 
industry-recognised training to individuals 
interested in working in the Aged Care sector  
and provide employment prospects to Box Hill 
Institute graduates

 > Partnered with the Rotary Club to build a new 
train for the Box Hill Miniature Steam Railway. This 
collaboration, funded by Rotary, involved students 
and teachers from the Institute’s Automotive and 
Electrical departments offering their time and skills 
to build the frame and electrics for the new train

 > Hosted a performance and luxury car visit for 
automotive students. Several companies rewarded 
Box Hill’s automotive apprentices and teachers 
for going above and beyond their usual duties by 
bringing out their luxury and performance cars for 
students to see. Participating companies included 
BMW, Porsche, Infinity and Mercedes

 > Welcomed Jobs Plus Apprenticeship Centre 
into our Nelson campus, reducing lease costs 
and creating deeper integration and increased 
exposure for the Institute

 > Supported several Gateway Local Learning and 
Employment Network (LLEN) events, including 
the Learn 4 Life program, Mechanical Minds, the 
VCAL Gateway LLEN Applied Learning Festival 
and the Box Hill Institute Breakfast Club

 > Events students successfully hosted two high-
profile events for one of our clients, Proactivity. 
These included a professional learning luncheon 
at Fountains Restaurant for primary and 
secondary teachers; and a Sports Gala Day at 
the Nunawading Basketball Club for children who 
have a disability

 > Sent VCAL students to the RSPCA in Burwood to 
attend a presentation and facilities tour. Students 
went on to develop special projects to support the 
work of the RSPCA as part of their PDS, Literacy 
and WRS units, which resulted in significant 
fundraising for the RSPCA

 > Forged an exciting new partnership with Xero 
Accounting to become the accredited trainer 
of Cloud Accounting and will train all Xero 
Accounting staff members

 > Continued to sponsor the Whitehorse Business 
Group. This Group represents the interests of the 
local business community and aims to assist the 
development of business initiatives within the City 
of Whitehorse

 > Received a flood damaged earthmoving machine 
from Komatsu’s Technical Education Centre.  
Box Hill students will repair the vehicle, which will 
be used as a future training tool

 > Worked in partnership with the RSPCA to deliver 
a Certificate II in Animal Studies. This intensive 
three week course involves students attending the 
RSPCA in Burwood for class delivery

 > Continued to drive future enrolments by school 
aged students, with our School’s Relationship unit 
attending over 220 school-related events this year

 > Continued our very successful relationship with 
Eastern Health, with a number of Diploma of 
Nursing students completing their placements 
within Eastern Health institutions

 > Received two steel frame houses from industry 
partner, Steelframe Solutions. These were donated 
to assist our carpentry apprentices to develop 
their steel frame construction skills

 > Continued our successful relationship with 
Sussans, with several Box Hill students 
successfully creating sleepwear designs for the 
National retail chain

 > Students created artwork for display in the Epworth 
Oncology ward. The artwork was later auctioned 
off to raise over $3,000 for the hospital. Due to its 
success, this will now be an ongoing project

 > Assisted hospitality staff member David Wilson 
with a fundraiser for Oxfam. David created an 
outstanding event for the Oxfam trailwalker this 
year. In order to raise funds for his Oxfam walk, 
The Institute offered him the use of Fountains 
Restaurant to host a fundraising dinner. Events 
students were responsible for managing the night 
and gaining sponsors. The event raised over $10k 
and students received an extraordinary learning 
experience and gained invaluable career contacts.
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Students and Customers

Achievements
In 2013 Box Hill Institute:

 > Successfully ran breakfast programs at two of our 
campuses. The program offered a free breakfast 
for VCAL and VETiS students, in an effort to 
promote student engagement

 > Intensively supported over 100 disability students 
through our disability support program. Individual 
study plans were created for each student 
and included providing interpreters, specialist 
equipment, adjustments and training for staff to 
successfully manage students with a disability 

 > Ran several community excursions, which were 
successful in promoting students personal 
development skills. These included visits to 
Lodden Prison, the Immigration Museum and the 
Jewish Holocaust Centre

 > Launched the Learner Diary App – a free app 
that allows students to access a personal diary 
to record important dates, deadlines and access 
Institute related news and events

 > Launched the Worowa VETiS program to great 
success. During semester two, teacher Lindy 
McShanag-Munn visited the Worawa Aboriginal 
College in teach 15 hair and beauty students

 > Achieved substantial success in our VCE results 
this year, with over 60% of students passing VCE. 
This wonderful program aims to create second 
chance opportunities for young students who would 
otherwise not have completed secondary studies

 > Hosted a hugely successful Australia Day picnic 
for our ESL students. The event was attended by 
over 100 of our present and past students and 
family members

 > Held our annual Harmony Day event again this 
year, showcasing the diverse culture of our 
institute. Students representing over 25 countries 
joined the festivities, bringing food and drinks from 
their culture to share. Entertainment featured a 
cello player from Korea, two pianists from China, 
a singer from Sri Lanka, singing groups from our 
English classes and Iranian students dancing to 
celebrate their New Year

 > Worked with the Industry Skills Council for pulp 
and paper, providing consultation to Forestworks 
around the development of innovation skillsets  
for employees

 > Selected a group of senior VCAL students to work 
with staff from the Victorian Electoral Commission 
(VEC) in testing the current Passport to Democracy 
Program. The students were instrumental in 
developing new materials for the program, which aims 
to promote voting by young Australians. Project and 
video material developed by members will be used in 
future VEC education programs and resources

 > Ran several individual courses for skilled migrant 
professionals. These invaluable courses aim to 
assist skilled migrants to find work in Australia 
related to their experience. The course featured 
a number of guest speakers from industry, 
including: Group Finance Manager, Dulux Group; 
Exec. Director Operations, Intrax Consulting 
Engineers; and Human Resources Manager, 
Open Universities. We have continued to work on 
our industry data base, which now includes over 
250 companies who offer regular work placement 
to our students

 > Created an incredibly successful program 
to engage students with learning difficulties. 
Approximately 60 students participated in the 
program and the Work Education staff members 
who developed the program were nominated for a 
SARP Award

 > Hosted a special Entrepreneurial Leadership Panel 
Q&A to raise the profile of our Higher Education and 
bachelor degrees offering. Throughout the night, a 
panel of successful entrepreneurs and academics 
gave their perspective on what it means to be a 
leader, followed by a Q&A with the audience, which 
include industry representatives, students and 
teachers from both Box Hill and other institutions 

 > Won a tender to facilitate the AtoB program. This 
government funded program aims to provide 
tradespeople with business management skills 
required to successfully start their own business. 
Box Hill Institute received a four year contract to 
deliver the program, which includes 20 metro and 
20 regional places annually

 > Hosted a Masterclass by Mike Stern, which was 
open for both students and teachers to attend. Box 
Hill was the only institute the jazz guitarist played at 
during the Melbourne International Jazz Festival

 > Continued to successfully service the Box Hill 
Senior Secondary College library, with the college 
using BHI’s library management system

 > Continued to successfully service the Hand Tool 
Preservation Association of Australia, housing their 
book library and developing a loans system for 
library members.

 > Moved to online assessments for intermediate 
VCAL students

 > Partnered with Yarra Valley Water on sustainability 
initiatives including the installation of a Water 
Refill Station on the Elgar Campus. Yarra Valley 
Water supplied water bottles so students and staff 
could ‘Choose Tap’ and refill their bottles with high 
quality tap water 

 > Held an extremely successful inaugural VETiS 
info night, with approximately 600 future VETiS 
students in attendance

 > The Institute ran an international student 
ambassador program. The program gave 
students the opportunity to network and develop 
their communication and leadership skills.
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Our People

Achievements
During 2013, the Institute ran a number of highly successful learning and development programs and 
initiatives for its people, to support its desired culture and enhance organisational capacity.
These programs included:

 > The New Opportunities program, designed to 
provide support to employees affected by Change 
Management plans

 > The Industry Skills Development program, aimed 
at enhancing the commercial skills of employees 
with key roles in developing commercial business

 > A new Classroom Management workshop 
focussing on creating a more inclusive and 
productive learning environment through 
effectively managing learner diversity in  
such areas as culture, mental health and  
physical disability

 > A focus on more effective work practices, with 
several well subscribed Advanced Microsoft 
Office and Time Management courses

 > The highly regarded Indigenous Cultural 
Awareness sessions run by the Wurundjeri 
Tribe Land and Compensation Cultural Heritage 
Council, to support the BHIG Wurreker Plan

 > A comprehensive management and leadership 
development program for managers at varying 
levels, incorporating Management Essentials, 
lunchtime Management Master Classes, tailored 
Coaching and Mentoring for Managers,  
a Leadership Toolkit and the 2013 Management 
Conference. These programs focussed on  
a broad range of topics and skills, covering 
practical management skills, compliance and 
legislation, communication, leading change and 
lean management.

Management Conference
The 2013 Management Conference, entitled Changing Strategic Direction, brought 
management teams together from all entities of the Box Hill Institute Group. Held over 
two days, the conference introduced the proposed 2014 strategic plan and refocussed 
the commercial direction for the Box Hill Institute Group. Designed to support the 
Institute’s new directions, the program incorporated interactive workshops on Lean 
Management and Innovation and Change, framed within a customer-centric perspective.
Participants described the conference as ‘the best in five years’ so to carry this 
momentum forward, a series of workshops under the banner Changing Strategic 
Direction will continue to be provided to strengthen leadership skills in related areas. 

Change Management Strategy
The Institute continued refocussing its operations in 2013 to respond to the changes 
in our operating environment. Following Centre reviews, formal Change Management 
processes were initiated where required. The guiding principles for our change 
processes were: people matter; change takes time; and, process is essential. The New 
Opportunities program was launched to assist staff affected by change, and through 
all steps of the process, the Institute prioritised effective communication and feedback 
with our employees and the unions. Successful outcomes were achieved through a 
combination of voluntary transfers, redeployment, and bona fide redundancies (the 
majority of which were voluntary). The change management process will continue  
into 2014.
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Infrastructure

Achievements
In 2013 Box Hill Institute:

 > Completed construction on our new Integrated 
Technology Hub (ITH). The $34 million project 
includes a state of the art, purpose built training 
facility for the heating, ventilation, air conditioning 
and refrigeration industry. This one of a kind 
complex encompasses the latest training 
equipment and industry technology

 > Refurbished the goods lift in Building E3, which 
was the last of a project refurbishing all lifts across 
the Institute

 > Upgraded the electronic security system  
across selected buildings on the Elgar and  
Nelson campuses

 > Replaced the multi-stack chiller and associated 
cooling tower with a 700 kW air-cooled chiller

 > Worked with Energy Safe Victoria (ESV) to 
conduct an audit of all of the Institute’s Type B 
gas appliances. Minor rectifications and upgrades 
were identified and have been now completed 

 > Completed the change process to include CAE 
facilities within Box Hill Institute Facilities Group

 > Executive Manager Facilities Services Greg 
Burnham was awarded the Victorian Member of 
the Year by the Facilities Management Association

 > Refurbished Levels 4 and 5 of Building E3, 
including the installation of multi-screen displays

 > Completed the annual PC and Server  
replacement program

 > Redeveloped Box Hill Singapore’s website 
 > The BHI website was also further developed 

(Stage II) and refreshed to make the site more 
user-centric, easier to search and with social 
media functionality 

 > Upgraded Student Management System (SMART) 
to meet the government’s regulatory changes

 > Integrated the CAE and Box Hill user identity 
system to provide streamlined communication 
between the two entities

 > Introduced Microsoft tablets to the Institute.

Our Business Performance

Achievements
Refer to Financial Performance 2013 section in this report.
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INTERNATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

New Partnerships in 
Transnational Delivery
In 2013, Box Hill Institute forged a new global 
partnership for transnational delivery with 
MENDAKI Sense College in Singapore as well as 
deepening our existing partnerships to expand our 
areas of co-operation.
New Letters of Intent and Memorandums of 
Understanding were signed with a number of 
institutions. These will be further developed 
to offer Box Hill Institute qualifications in aged 
care, business, building and construction, 
graphic design, hospitality, manufacturing; and 
engineering/trade related qualifications throughout 
China, Malaysia, India, Indonesia, Singapore and 
Sri Lanka.

Vanuatu TVET Sector 
Strengthening Program 
Phase 3 
The Institute was awarded the contract for the 
Vanuatu TVET Sector Strengthening Program Phase 
3 in March 2013. The program is funded by the 
Australian Government Aid Program and managed 
by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade. 
The purpose of the Vanuatu TVET Program is to 
support the Government of Vanuatu to implement 
the National TVET policy. In addition to assisting 
the government at a national level, the program 
focuses on delivery of nationally accredited skills 
training and business development services 
coordinated through TVET Centres in Malampa and 
Sanma Provinces. 
The Vanuatu TVET Program works very closely with 
the productive and private sectors in the country 
to meet the demands for a skilled and employable 
workforce. One of the highlights of 2013 was the 
confirmation of a third TVET centre to open in Torba 
Province in early 2014. 
New initiatives completed or commenced in 
2013 included a review of national TVET teacher 
qualifications, development of a national disability 
inclusion strategy for the Vanuatu TVET sector and 
the development of a national workplace literacy 
and numeracy strategy. In 2014 the program will 
include delivery of a range of services funded 
through the Pacific Women Shaping Pacific 
Development program.
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Australia-Pacific 
Technical College
The Australia-Pacific Technical College (APTC) 
continued to expand in 2013 with the establishment 
of a fifth campus in the Solomon Islands. The 
campus is located in Honiara in partnership 
with the Don Bosco Technical Institute. APTC is 
responsible for delivering qualifications in electrical 
and construction. 
The college secured a large training contract with 
the Oceania National Olympic Committee involving 
training and assessment in six Pacific Forum 
countries. New programs were delivered in Tonga 
(Disability) and Nauru (Diploma of Community 
Services). 
The college continued with its significant 
contribution to Pacific vocational education teacher 
training with the delivery of the Certificate IV in 
Training and Assessment qualification in Kiribati, 
Vanuatu and Samoa. 
The APTC signed a cooperation agreement with 
the Vivekananda Technical Centre in Fiji to support 
the development of vocational pathways and 
employment opportunities for students from the 
Western Division in Fiji. In November the APTC 
won the 2013 Pacific Human Rights Awards for 
outstanding contribution to advancing the rights to 
housing and employment on Upolu Island, Samoa, 
after Cyclone Evan in 2012. 

Partnership with 
Shanghai Dian Ji 
University (SDJU)
Box Hill Institute celebrated the successful 
transnational delivery partnership with SDJU at 
its 60th year anniversary event and international 
education forum. SDJU has been our longest 
standing joint education co-operation partner 
in China since 2002. Over 1,000 SDJU-BHI 
graduates have successfully completed Chinese 
and Australian qualifications in either business or 
engineering disciplines.

Box Hill Institute 
Singapore
Box Hill Institute Singapore has operated as a 
Continuous Education and Training (CET) Centre 
for the Singapore Workforce Development Agency. 
The Centre launched its tourism, food and 
beverage industry courses to develop the human 
capital to meet anticipated industry growth in  
this sector. 
This was combined with a presence in the 
community and social services sector.
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DOMESTIC HIGHLIGHTS

Integrated Technology 
Hub
2013 marked the completion of construction on 
our new Integrated Technology Hub (ITH). This 
$34 million project is an initiative of the Australian 
Government, funded as part of the Education 
Investment Fund.
The Integrated Technology Hub (ITH) will provide 
world class facilities in a highly environmentally 
friendly building that has been designed to achieve 
a 5 star green star accreditation. The ITH is a 
four storey building with 6,000 square metres 
creating more than 3,000 additional student places 
annually.
The Integrated Technology Hub is a unique 
concept and will build on the Institute’s educational 
strategy of creating programs and facilities that 
are aligned to industry requirements. In this case, 
the specialised needs of the building services and 
electro-mechanical technologies areas.
Designed in collaboration with the AMCA, the ITH 
will also be home to the Refrigeration and Climate 
Control Centre of Excellence (RCCC) in partnership 
with the Air-Conditioning and Mechanical 
Contractors Association (AMCA) and the RCCC 
will provide the main training facilities for the air-
conditioning and allied industries.

Aveda Global Visit
Box Hill Institute is home to the Aveda Day Spa, 
the product of a unique international training 
partnership with Aveda. This year BHI conducted 
an extremely successful visit with the Aveda global 
executive team. 11 Members of the Aveda global 
executive team visited BHI, to tour facilities and 
meet with key staff. BHI was congratulated on the 
high standard of spa training, with the team stating 
it was the best spa training they had seen and 
that BHI will be used as a model for other centres 
around the world.

Training and Services
Box Hill Institute is the preferred training provider 
for a number of corporations Australia-wide. We 
have continued to significantly increase the level of 
repeat business this year from several key clients, 
including: Victorian Ombudsman, Queensland 
Department of Transport and Main Roads (Safety 
Branch), Department of Justice, Crown, Master 
Builders Association of Victoria, AMCA, Vision 
Australia, Boral, Eastern Health, Kimberley Clark, 
Amcor, SCA Hygiene Australia and Australian 
Paper.
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Degree Pathways
The Institute has a long and successful history of 
building on it strengths in tertiary education by 
working with students to optimise their educational 
opportunities. The Institute aims to provide a variety 
of options into higher level courses. As a result, 
clear pathways are provided between certificates 
and diplomas, into advanced diploma and  
degree courses. 
In 2013, Box Hill Institute aimed to enhance 
pathways opportunities within the Institute, and with 
our Institute partners, by building on articulation 
agreements that were formed in 2011. 
Some of the highlights for the year in relation to this 
initiative included: 

Australian Catholic 
University
An agreement has been signed to offer Box Hill 
Institute students guaranteed places at Australian 
Catholic University for Business, Sports Recreation 
and Nursing. 

La Trobe University
New pathways have been developed with La Trobe 
University for Nursing and Allied Health Services. 
Students will receive credits towards their bachelor 
degree at La Trobe.

Monash University
A pathway with Monash University has been 
developed for Early Childhood and Adult  
Education students.

Deakin University
Box Hill Institute now offer guaranteed pathways 
to Deakin University for students in the Advanced 
Diploma of Mechanical Engineering.

Student Outcomes 
Survey
The Institute participated in the National Centre 
for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) TAFE 
Student Outcomes Survey. This was the annual 
graduate satisfaction and outcomes survey (based 
on students who completed in 2012 and were 
surveyed in May 2013), which was managed by 
NCVER. Key results included:

 > A significantly higher rate of graduates 
employed after training, with 82.1 per cent of 
Box Hill Institute graduates employed after 
training compared with a national average of 
78.2 per cent

 > 82.0 per cent of graduates main reason for 
undertaking training was employment-related

 > A significant increase in satisfaction, with  
88.4 per cent of graduates satisfied or very 
satisfied with the teaching.

Performance Against 
Responsibilities
The Institute’s student management system 
(SMART) recorded 35,012 enrolments in 2013, 
compared with 40,467 enrolments in 2012, 
comprising 34,329 VET enrolments and 683 higher 
education enrolments.
A breakdown of government student course 
enrolments by subsidy band in 2013 is provided in 
Chart A. 
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Chart A: Government student course enrolments 
by subsidy band in 2013

Total delivery Government Commercial % Government % Commercial

2002 7,006,110 4,624,033 2,382,077 66% 34%

2003 7,172,641 4,490,073 2,682,568 63% 37%

2004 7,377,899 4,559,542 2,818,357 62% 38%

2005 7,318,881 4,610,895 2,707,986 63% 37%

2006 7,711,571 4,636,688 3,074,883 60% 40%

2007 8,556,479 4,756,269 3,800,210 56% 44%

2008 8,647,262 4,913,010 3,734,252 57% 43%

2009 9,710,915 4,931,723 4,779,192 51% 49%

2010 9,796,042 5,419,817 4,376,225 55% 45%

2011 9,834,084 5,564,821 4,269,263 57% 43%

2012 8,973,807 5,048,869 3,924,938 56% 44%

2013 7,470,527 3,268,010 4,202,517 44% 56%

Chart B: Total student contact hours at Box Hill 
Institute over the past 12 years

Total student contact hours delivery at Box Hill Institute over the past 12 years is shown in Chart B.

Band A

Band B

Band C

Band D

Band E

0 3000 6000 9000 12000 15000
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GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to ensuring that the community is serviced effectively with 
vocational and further education programs which are responsive to their needs.
The Board is also committed to the adoption of ethical conduct in all areas of its 
responsibilities and authority. In so doing, it binds its members to the principles and 
practices determined in the Board’s Charter. 
The board is ultimately responsible to the Victorian Government for the governance and 
management of the Institute.

Committees 
To assist the Board in meeting its duties, the Board 
has established a number of committees. During 
2013 these included:

 > Audit, Finance and Risk Committee
 > Board Remuneration Committee
 > Capital Planning Committee
 > Nominations Committee.

Audit, Finance and Risk 
committee
The objective of the Audit Finance and Risk 
Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that 
the control and compliance framework operating 
across the Institute and its controlled entities 
is operating effectively and that its external 
accountability responsibilities are being met.
Membership during 2013 has included:

 > Bruce Thompson (Committee Chair)
 > Suzanne Ewart
 > Elizabeth White
 > Philip Belcher
 > Noelene Duff
 > Glen Walker
 > Janet Compton

Board Remuneration 
Committee
The objective of the Remuneration Committee is 
to assist the Board in ensuring that remuneration 
practices for the CEO and Executive Officers are 
in accordance with Government policy relating to 
Public Sector employment administered by the 
State Services Authority and Ministerial directions 
to TAFE Institutes, and that these practices are 
applied.
Membership during 2013 included:

 > Suzanne Ewart (Committee Chair)
 > Elizabeth White (former Committee Chair)
 > Philip Belcher
 > Noelene Duff
 > John Maddock
 > Bruce Thompson
 > Glen Walker
 > Helen Buckingham
 > Janet Compton
 > Greg Malone
 > Phillip Davies

Box Hill Institute is governed by a Board that is representative 
of government, industry and community. The role of the 
Board is to oversee and govern the Institute and the Centre for 
Adult Education (CAE) efficiently and effectively, develop and 
implement strategic plans for the Institute and CAE, and ensure 
that the Institute operates in accordance with its objectives, 
strategic plan and its statement of corporate intent.
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Capital Planning 
Committee
The objective of the Capital Planning Committee 
is to oversee and advise the Board in relation to 
the development and maintenance of the Strategic 
Asset Management Plan and to monitor the delivery 
of capital building projects that are included in the 
Institute capital development program.
Membership during 2013 included:

 > Helen Buckingham (Committee Chair)
 > Suzanne Ewart
 > Elizabeth White
 > Bruce Thompson
 > John Maddock
 > Phillip Davies
 > Christine Kilmartin.

Board Members
During 2013 the following members served  
on the Board:

 > Suzanne Ewart (Chair from 16 April) 
Meeting Attendance: 11/11

 > Elizabeth White (former Chair) 
Meeting Attendance: 8/9

 > Philip Belcher (to 15 April) 
Meeting Attendance: 1/1

 > Ian Hind (to 31 March) 
Meeting Attendance: 1/1

 > Michael Zangmeister (to 15 April) 
Meeting Attendance: 1/1

 > John Maddock (to 15 April) 
Meeting Attendance: 1/1

 > Noelene Duff (to 6 November) 
Meeting Attendance: 5/9

 > Bruce Thompson 
Meeting Attendance: 11/12

 > Glen Walker 
Meeting Attendance: 10/12

 > Helen Buckingham 
Meeting Attendance: 12/12

 > Janet Compton 
Meeting Attendance: 10/12

 > Greg Malone 
Meeting Attendance: 11/12

 > Phillip Davies (from 1 June) 
Meeting Attendance: 9/9
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DIRECTOR DEVELOPMENT 

Box Hill Institute is committed to  
the ongoing professional 
development of its directors. 

Relevant activity in 2013 comprised:
 > In-house information and strategy sessions on a range of topics relevant to the 

operations of the Institute and governance role of directors
 > Information briefings presented by members of the executive team on specific areas 

of Institute operations
 > The Victorian TAFE Association (VTA) TAFE Governance Forum
 > Australian Institute of Company Directors membership, including a range of 

professional development seminars, newsletters and bulletins 
 > Directors received a range of regular publications and updates from professional 

associations and other advisory bodies highlighting changes in legislation and 
best practice; for instance, the bi-monthly Australian Institute of Company Directors 
(AICD) and director updates 

 > A number of directors undertook additional professional development activities in  
a range of areas relevant to their role at the Institute. 

Directors of Box Hill 
Enterprises Limited 
The names and relevant details of the directors in 
office as at 31 December 2013:

 > Bruce Thompson
 > Elizabeth White
 > Suzanne Ewart
 > Janet Compton
 > Helen Buckingham
 > Greg Malone
 > Glen Walker.

Directors of Box Hill 
Institute Singapore 
Propriety Limited
The names and relevant details of the directors as 
at 31 December 2013:

 > Suzanne Ewart
 > Phillip Davies
 > Valerie Lim (Singapore Resident Director).
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FINANCIAL  
PERFORMANCE 2013 

The Institute and the BHI Group, comprising Box Hill Institute, the Centre for  
Adult Education, Box Hill Enterprises Limited, and Box Hill Institute Singapore,  
achieved a consolidated Net Result from continuing and discontinued operations of 
$0.163 million (2012: $13.040 million) compared to a Board approved operating  
budget of $0.911 million.

These downward factors have been partially  
offset by:

 > An increase in student fees and charges for 
government funded programs

 > An increase in government fee for service for 
project contracted revenues

 > An increase in accredited fee for service 
vocational programs

 > The sale of a business providing occupational 
English testing services, whilst retaining a 
significant share in the ongoing operation of  
the business.

To mitigate the challenges that the overall 
reduction in income over the last year presents, 
the BHI Group continued to review and refine 
its operations including undertaking an ongoing 
assessment of the viability of specific programs, 
moderating staffing profiles to ensure they are in 
line with market shifts and a continuing focus on 
maximising efficiencies and reducing the cost of 
corporate support services.

Comprehensive 
Operating Statement
The lower result for 2013 compared to 2012 is 
due to a number of contributing factors. The 2012 
financial performance includes: 

 > A higher level of capital grant contributions 
relating to approved infrastructure projects 

 > Funding adjustments from the phase out of the 
Institute’s pipeline delivery commitments

 > A gain recognised on the consolidation of the 
Centre for Adult Education for the first time in 
2012 of $5.038 million.

For 2013, operating income has been impacted by 
a number of factors including:

 > A reduction in subsidy rates for a range of 
government funded programs from 1 July 2012

 > The cessation of government funding for full 
service provision not tied to program delivery

 > Reduced demand across a range of 
government subsidised programs due to 
economic and competition factors and also as 
a response to price increases

 > Discontinuance of a number of unviable 
courses

 > A continuing decline in international student 
revenue as a result of changed visa 
requirements and the continuing impact of the 
high Australian dollar.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

2011 
$’000

2010 
$’000

2009 
$’000

Summary of Financial Performance

Government Contributions – Operating 43,411 69,113 67,021 62,330 61,328

Sale of goods and services 66,273 64,710 56,100 54,998 54,781

Other Revenue 5,460 7,352 5,441 3,653 3,367

TOTAL INCOME FROM TRANSACTIONS  
(Excluding Capital Grants) 115,144 141,175 128,562 120,981 119,476

TOTAL EXPENSES FROM TRANSACTIONS
(Excluding Depreciation and Expenditure  
from capital contributions)

(116,572) (132,352) (112,220) (113,355) (115,088)

EARNINGS BEFORE DEPRECIATION, CAPITAL 
GRANTS AND OTHER ECONOMIC FLOWS (1,428) 8,823 16,342 7,626 4,388

Government Contributions - Capital 3,950 5,038 9,673 6,292 6,991

Depreciation and Amortisation (5,766) (6,030) (5,915) (7,615) (4,422)

Expenditure using government contributions – capital (285) (1,204) (680) (1,446) (1,455)

Other economic flows included in net result 227 5,053 (1,556) (826) (190)

Net result from discontinued operations 3,466 1,360 - - -

NET RESULT 163 13,040 17,864 4,031 5,312

Five Year Consolidated Financial Summary

Balance Sheet
Despite the challenges in the BHI Group’s operating environment as evidenced in its operating statement 
performance, the overall net worth of the BHI Group has held at 2012 levels. 
During 2013 the Institute completed the construction of the new Integrated Technology Hub which has 
increased the value of Property Plant and Equipment whilst reducing the balance of cash and investments 
held. The completion of this project has also reduced payables associated with its construction.
Liabilities have also reduced as a result of the payment of overpaid advances received from the Higher 
Education Skills Group and a reduction in employee benefits associated with staff reductions and 
redundancies in line with reduced or changed demand for some programs.

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

2011 
$’000

2010 
$’000

2009 
$’000

Summary of Balance Sheet Performance

Assets 268,469 277,160 226,418 204,151 197,964

Liabilities (27,891) (37,766) (32,294) (27,890) (25,734)

NET ASSETS 240,578 239,394 194,125 176,261 172,230

Accumulated Surplus 97,483 90,778 77,739 59,875 55,844

Reserves 115,971 121,492 89,262 89,262 89,262

Contributed Capital 27,124 27,124 27,124 27,124 27,124

NET WORTH 240,578 239,394 194,125 176,261 172,230
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Employment Services
In 2013, the Box Hill Institute Group continued 
to upgrade its HRIS system with a focus on 
enhancing the shared service capability across  
the group.
The Institute is committed to improving its HR 
reporting function and streamlining internal 
processes. Upgrades commenced to the 
e-recruitment system and onboarding process, with 
extensions to the self-service kiosk for managers. 
This all provides greater access to a broader range 
of information.
The Institute achieved compliance with Working 
With Children and National Police Record checks. 
It also significantly reduced its annual leave 
liabilities.

Employee Relations
All Box Hill Institute policies and procedures 
support the implementation of the State 
Government’s public sector employment principles 
across the Group, requiring all employees with 
management responsibilities ensure that:

 > Employment decisions are based on merit 
 > Employees are treated fairly and reasonably
 > Equal employment opportunity is ensured 
 > Human rights are protected and upheld
 > Employees have a reasonable avenue for 

redress against unfair or unreasonable treatment 
 > All employment information and data  

related to our people is collected and  
managed confidentially in accordance with 
privacy, public records and other relevant 
legislative requirements.

Staff Wellbeing 
The Institute conducts a bi-annual Satisfaction 
Survey to ascertain the views of our employees and 
inform our People and Culture Department about 
opportunities for organisational improvements, and 
for various People and Culture activities, including 
our development programs. 
Highlights of the development program for 2013 
were Wellness sessions from Sally Mathrick, 
naturopath and internationally published health 
author. These sessions explored links between 
nutrition and physical and mental health issues. 

The Institute continues to provide an independent 
and confidential Employee Assistance Program 
(EAP) for its people and their immediate family 
members, and an independent Manager Assist 
Program (MAP) for members of the Management 
Team. The EAP aims to support the emotional, 
mental and general psychological wellbeing of 
employees through the provision of preventive and 
proactive support for work related and personal 
issues that may adversely affect performance 
and wellbeing. The MAP is a self-referral service 
designed to support managers both in their ability 
to manage teams and to confidentially discuss 
personal or professional concerns.

Staff Achievement and 
Recognition
The Box Hill Institute Group’s Staff Achievement 
and Recognition Program (SARP) embodies the 
Institute’s vision, mission and values and supports 
organisational culture in a range of significant areas. 
The dedication of staff who have been employed 
within the Institute for 10 years or more is honoured 
and their commitment formally recognised. 
The SARP program recognises those employees 
and teams who have achieved outstanding 
performance, and promotes increased awareness 
of best practice. In addition to the annual award 
program, Spotlight on Excellence awards are 
presented throughout the year to acknowledge 
employees whose behaviour or activities exemplify 
the values of the Institute.
In 2013, SARP received submissions of exemplary 
calibre and the winners and their achievements 
are outlined in the ‘Year of Awards’ section of the 
Annual Report.

Workplace Relations
Consultative Committees comprising management, 
staff and union representatives continue to work 
cooperatively. In 2013, the Institute commenced 
negotiation of new Enterprise Agreements for 
teachers and professional staff. All parties are 
committed to a collaborative approach and both 
consultative committees meet on a regular and 
ongoing basis.
There were no days lost within the Institute due to 
industrial action in 2013.

COMPLIANCE 
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Consultancies under $10,000

Consultants Number of 
Engagements

Total 
Fees 
Paid

Particulars of Projects involved
Estimated 
Future 
Commitments 

Anne Dalton & 
Associates 4 18,090 Probity advice to support procurement and 

tendering process. 45,215 

AVTEG 1 16,500 Provision of international research services. -  

Biruu Pty Ltd 1 33,000 Consultancy services and advice regarding business 
case development for asset master plan acquisitions. -  

Ernst & Young 2 170,370 
Provision of consultancy services and advice 
relating to the BHI Group International Strategy and 
Strategic Planning document.

 - 

Godfrey Spowers 4 271,067 
Architectural services relating to the Institute's 
capital works and infrastructure programs and the 
Integrated Technology Hub project.

93,292 

Grant Thornton 7 655,759 
Professional and taxation advice for international 
offshore operations, capital acquisition and financial 
strategies and planning.

44,749 

ISIS Group 1 263,667 Consultancy and building services relating to the 
Institute's capital works and infrastructure programs. -  

Johnson Controls 1 144,890 Consultancy services Detailed Facility Study of 
Energy Performance. -  

MA & Associates 1 12,000 Provision of consultancy services in relation to 
Market Analysis and Trends. 600 

Nossal Institute 1 15,650 Professional assistance to develop a Disability 
Inclusion Strategy for the Vanuatu TVET Sector. 10,990 

Pitcher Partners 2 35,953 Professional advice for MIS systems and tax advice 
relating to the Singapore office. 15,902 

PPB Advisory 
Services 1 33,349 Independent review of Box Hill Institute Singapore 

operations. 83,469 

PriceWaterhouse 1 88,567 Professional and tax advisory services in 
connection with operations in Kuwait. -  

Synoptic Consul 1 10,507 Consultancy services relating to the Review of the 
Australia- Pacific Technical College project. -  

Talent2 Works 1 26,666 Consultancy Services relating to the Institute's 
Human Resources and Payroll systems. 1,885 

Wilde & Woollard 4 125,880 
Architectural services relating to the Institute's 
capital works and infrastructure programs and the 
Integrated Technology Hub project.

1,020 

Woods Bagot Pty 1 70,176 Professional services relating to the development 
the BHI Group Asset Strategy Master Plan. 12,384 

Consultancies
Details of consultancies engaged during 2013 are as follows:

Consultancies over $10,000

Number of Engagements 9

Total Fees Incurred $22,429 

These engagements relate to various consultants engaged for the provision of architectural and quantity 
surveyor services relating to the Institute’s building and infrastructure projects and commercial bid and 
business case development projects.  
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Compulsory Student Services and  
Amenities Fee
The Institute and Centre for Adult Education levies a compulsory student services 
and amenities fee that is determined in accordance with the Ministerial Directions on 
Students Fees and Charges. The fee is fully applied to the provision of funding for 
student recreation, counselling and welfare and other non-academic support services.
The processes for the collection and disbursement of the services and amenities  
fees are managed by the Institute and the CAE respectively and are not paid to any 
student organisations.
Total Student Services and Amenities Fees collected for the year ending 31 December 
2013 was $717,761.

Risk Management and 
Attestation Statement
As part of its annual Risk Management program 
and commitment to continuous improvement, the 
Institute undertakes an annual review of its Risk 
Management Policy and Risk Management Plan 
to ensure that the its risk management framework 
continues to appropriately support the BHI Group’s 
Operations and is in line with appropriate 
international risk management standards  
where appropriate.
During 2013, the Institute’s risk management policy 
and plan were updated to include the operations of 
the two new controlled entities being the Centre for 
Adult Education and BHI Singapore Pte Lte.
At its meeting of 19 February 2014, and in 
accordance with the requirements of the Victorian 
Management Insurance Authority Act, the Audit 
Finance and Risk Committee approved the 
following attestation statement to be made by the 
Chair on behalf of the Board, the Institute and its 
controlled entities.

Attestation Statement
I, Suzanne Ewart, Chair of Box Hill Institute 
Board, certify that the Box Hill Institute has risk 
management processes in place consistent with 
the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management 
Standard (AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 or its 
successor) and an internal control system is in 
place that enables the executive to understand, 
manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures. 
The Institute’s risk management and internal 
controls systems are, as part of a governance 
review, being reviewed by the Board and this 
process is expected to be finalised early 2014.
The Board verifies this assurance and advises 
that the current risk profile of the Institute will be 
critically reviewed as part of this process.

Suzanne Ewart 
Chair
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Financial Reporting 
Directions
This Report is prepared in accordance with  
the requirements of the Financial Reporting 
Directions. For further details please refer to the 
Financial Statements. 

Statements of Pecuniary 
Interests
The Institute has in place policies and procedures 
that require relevant officers of all BHI Group 
entities to complete Statements of Pecuniary 
Interests on an annual basis. All such statements 
have been duly completed. 
Information about declarations of pecuniary interests 
by all relevant officers should be directed to:
The Freedom of Information Officer 
Box Hill Institute of TAFE 
465 Elgar Road,  
Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222

Details of Shares Held By 
Senior Officers
Requests for information about shares held by 
senior officers, as nominee or held beneficially in a 
statutory authority or subsidiary, if any, should be 
directed to:
The Freedom of Information Officer 
Box Hill Institute of TAFE 
465 Elgar Road,  
Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222

National Competition 
Policy
The Institute has in place policies and procedures 
to ensure compliance with the National  
Competition Policy which take into account the 
Victorian Government’s Competitive Neutrality  
Policy requirements and the requirements of 
related legislation.

Major Commercial 
Activities
In 2013, Box Hill Institute had no ‘major commercial 
activities’ meeting the definition under the 
Commercial Guidelines – TAFE Institutes.

Freedom of Information
Box Hill Institute has implemented procedures 
which, subject to privacy provisions, facilitate all 
reasonable requests for information from students, 
staff and the general public without recourse to the 
Freedom of Information Act 1982. 
Requests under the Freedom of Information Act 
should be addressed to: 
The Freedom of Information Officer 
Box Hill Institute 
465 Elgar Road,  
Box Hill VIC 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222
Box Hill Institute may levy a charge for information 
provided that is subject to a Freedom of 
Information request, in accordance with the 
relevant requirements. There was one formal 
request for information to be supplied under 
the Freedom of Information Act during the 2013 
reporting period. 
Any student may see his/her personal record by 
applying to: 
The Registrar 
Box Hill Institute 
465 Elgar Road,  
Box Hill VIC 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9572
Any staff member may see access to his/her 
personnel file by applying to: 
Executive Manager OD Strategy and Service 
Box Hill Institute  
810 Whitehorse Road 
Box Hill VIC 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9441

Protected Disclosure Act
The Institute has developed a policy which 
establishes a system for the protection of persons 
who make a protected disclosure under the 
Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (Vic) (The Act) 
from detrimental action by officers, members, 
employees and contractors of Box Hill Institute 
and the Centre for Adult Education (CAE), in 
accordance with section 58 (5) of the Act and 
ensures that all other requirements of the Act  
are met.
Full details of the Institute’s Protected Disclosure 
Act policy can be found under the Policies and 
Procedures section of the Box Hill Institute website 
at http://www.bhtafe.edu.au/about/Pages/Policies-
procedures.aspx
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Occupational Health and 
Safety (OHS) 

Training and development:
Staff were provided with the following training 
opportunities during 2013:

 > Health and Safety Representative five day 
course and refresher

 > Emergency Control Organisation/Warden 
Training

 > First Aid Level Two
 > CPR/Defibrillator refresher
 > OHS for Managers and Supervisors
 > Chemical Management in the Workplace
 > Manual Handling
 > Introduction to OHS legislation.

Communication plan:
Staff were provided with information on 
occupational health and safety through the 
following channels:

 > Regular emails regarding OHS and hazard 
identification/control

 > Access to WorkSafe and other industry bulletins 
and newsletters

 > Information sessions conducted by OHS 
Department covering a variety of safety  
related topics

 > Updated OHS policies and procedures have 
been drafted and distributed for consultation

 > Complete update of Centre Safety Plan template 
undertaken and distributed for completion.

OHS Committee and 
volunteer safety staff:

 > The Box Hill Institute Occupational Health  
and Safety Committee met consistently 
throughout 2013

 > There are 23 Box Hill Institute (BHI) and  
4 Centre for Adult Education (CAE) health and 
safety representatives

 > There are 51 BHI and 18 CAE Fire/Zone 
Wardens across all buildings

 > There are 114 BHI and 8 CAE First Aid Officers 
across all buildings.

Health and Safety Week:
Activities for Health and Safety Week included 
sessions on:

 > Hazard identification and risk assessment 
sessions

 > Basic ergonomics and work station 
assessment/setup.

WorkSafe Victoria:
 > WorkSafe Victoria visited BHI on two occasions 

during 2013 and one visit for CAE
 > The first visit pertained to a strategic Plant 

and Manual Handling project for which nil non 
compliances were identified. The second visit 
was the result of a student injury at Ceylon St. 
Nil notices were issues and all matters have 
been resolved

 > CAE visit involved slip/trip hazard at foyer entry, 
nil notices issued

 > BHI and CAE continue to maintain a good 
relationship with the regulator.

Other OHS:
 > Full storage room audit conducted across  

all BHI campuses, opportunities for 
improvement identified and implemented by 
Centre Managers

 > BHI and CAE wide First Aid Audit conducted 
with all kits updated to current standards. 
Complete revamp of First Aid protocols also 
undertaken during 2013

 > Evacuation drills conducted on all sites
 > Hepatitis A and B immunisation for all first aid 

staff and influenza immunizations offered for  
all staff

 > Work Health Checks conducted throughout 2013 
attracted 234 staff from BHI and 19 for CAE.
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Environmental Performance
Box Hill Institute is committed to environmental sustainability and to meeting our targets 
in this respect.
The direct environmental impacts of our core business, which is vocational and higher 
education and training, have been identified and we record activity relating to energy 
use, waste production, paper, water consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.
The consumption of resources and greenhouse gas emissions covering the Institute’s 
office based operations in 2013 are summarised as follows:

Energy use

Waste production
Total units of office waste disposed of by 
destination (kg per year)

Destination kg per year

Landfill 316,210

Commingled Recycling 19,340

Metal Recycling 6,981

Paper Recycling 31,590

Timber Recycling 21,840

Cardboard Recycling 174,510

Liquid Recycling 29,306

 > Units of office waste disposed of per full-time 
employee by destination = 788.4 kg per FTE

 > Recycling rate (% of total waste by weight) = 47.3%

Total energy usage segmented by primary source, 
including GreenPower

Electricity 
26,084,653.6 
Megajoules 

Natural Gas  
19,475,198 
Megajoules 

Total Energy 
45,559,851.6 
Megajoules

Greenhouse Gas Emissions associated with energy 
use, segmented by primary source and offsets

4,637 Tonnes

Percentage of electricity purchased as Green Power  11.3%

Units of energy used per full-time employee
59,884.14 Megajoules 
per FTE 

Units of energy used per unit of office area 495.7 Megajoules per m2

Paper Use  
 > Total units of A4 equivalent copy paper used  

= 11,506 reams
 > Units of A4 equivalent copy paper used per  

full-time employee = 15.12 reams per FTE 
 > Percentage of recycled content in copy paper 

purchased = 11%

Water Consumption:
 > Total units of metered water consumed by 

water source = 27,495 Kilolitres mains water 
 > Units of metered water consumed in offices per 

full-time employee = 36.14 Kilolitres/FTE
 > Units of metered water consumed in offices per 

unit of office area = 0.3 Kilolitres per m2 GFA.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
 > Total greenhouse gas emissions associated with 

energy use = 4,637 Tonnes for electricity alone.
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Building Maintenance
This report provides details of the extent of Box Hill 
Institute’s compliance with the Building Act 1993, 
as required by the Directions of the Minister for 
Finance issued under Section 8 of the Financial 
Management Act 1994. Buildings Condition Audits 
are conducted annually on each building to meet 
ministerial guidelines. Box Hill Institute has in place 
maintenance programmes for the buildings, plant 
and equipment across all campuses.

Construction Works
Box Hill Institute has a strong focus on meeting 
regulatory requirements and occupational health 
and safety standards. The Institute incorporates 
environmentally sustainable features in the course 
of providing and maintaining its buildings, with 
the intention of providing aesthetically pleasing 
facilities which exceed the expectations of 
students, staff and the general public.
The Institute ensures that, for all works requiring 
building approval, an independent building 
surveyor is engaged to issue the required permits, 
inspect the works on a progressive basis and 
provide the final occupancy certificates. Box Hill 
Institute ensures that the relevant local council is 
approached for advice on local council provisions 
and issues during the project planning stage. 
Contractors and building practitioners engaged for 
Institute works are required to provide evidence 
of correct registration, relevant insurances and 
WorkCover before their engagement. All building 
contractors engaged by the Institute during 2013 
undertook a formal safety induction and met their 
required obligations.

Advertising 
During 2013, all individual Box Hill Institute 
advertising campaigns were under $150,000 
media spend.

Other Relevant 
Information
Consistent with the requirements of the Financial 
Management Act 1994, Box Hill Institute has 
prepared material on the following items, details of 
which are available on request and in accordance 
with the Institute’s Freedom of Information Policies:

 > Changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and 
levies

 > Major external reviews
 > Major research and development activities
 > Overseas visits undertaken
 > Publications
 > Occupational health and safety assessments 

and measures
 > Industrial relations issues and
 > Major committees sponsored by Box Hill 

Institute.
Enquires should be addressed to:
The Freedom of Information Officer 
Box Hill Institute 
465 Elgar Road, 
Box Hill 3128 
Telephone: (03) 9286 9222 

Compliance with  
Other Legislation
Box Hill Institute complies with the requirements of 
relevant legislation and subordinate instruments, 
including, but not limited to, the following:

 > Education and Training Reform Act 2006
 > The Constitution
 > Directions of the Minister for Higher Education 

and Skills (or predecessors)
 > TAFE Institute Commercial Guidelines
 > TAFE Institute Strategic Planning Guidelines
 > Public Administration Act 2004
 > Freedom of Information Act 1982
 > Building Act 1983
 > Protected Disclosure Act 2012
 > Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003
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TEACHING STAFF

Employment Status  
Full 

Time 
2013

Full 
Time 
2012

Part 
Time 
2013

Part 
Time 
2012

Total 
2013

Total 
2012

EFT 
2013

EFT 
2012

On-Going Female 64 71 57 66 121 137 100.9 114.2

On-Going Male 102 122 22 20 124 142 117.7 136.4

Fixed Term Female 37 50 24 33 61 83 50.1 69.3

Fixed Term Male 98 78 11 14 109 92 66.8 89.6

Casual Female 0 0 173 123 173 123 39.9 23.3

Casual Male 0 0 196 145 196 145 44.5 29.5

SUB-TOTAL Female 101 121 254 222 355 343 190.9 206.8

SUB-TOTAL Male 200 200 229 179 429 379 229.0 255.5

GENERAL STAFF

Employment Status  
Full 

Time 
2013

Full 
Time 
2012

Part 
Time 
2013

Part 
Time 
2012

Total 
2013

Total 
2012

EFT 
2013

EFT 
2012

Executive Officers Female 9 9   9 9 9.0 9

Executive Officers Male 5 5   5 5 5.0 5

Management Female 20 19   20 19 20.0 19

Management Male 22 22 3 1 25 23 23.9 22.3

General On-Going Female 95 116 36 42 131 158 116.7 142.3

General On-Going Male 46 47 9 9 55 56 51.5 54.6

General Fixed Term Female 34 36 22 19 56 55 48.4 47.6

General Fixed Term Male 22 26 9 6 31 32 27.4 29.1

General Casual Female 0 0 49 27 49 27 7.2 8.7

General Casual Male 0 0 5 5 12 5 1.4 2.7

Other Staff On-Going Female 8 1 2 0 10 1 9.0 1

Other Staff On-Going Male 8 11 0 3 8 14 8.0 12.4

Other Staff Fixed Term Female 1 0 2 0 3 0 2.5 0

Other Staff Fixed Term Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0

Other Staff Casual Female 0 0 45 24 45 24 6.0 3.1

Other Staff Casual Male 0 0 42 19 42 19 4.9 3.3

SUB-TOTAL Female 167 181 156 112 323 293 218.8 230.7

SUB-TOTAL Male 103 111 68 43 178 154 122.1 129.4

TOTAL Female 268 302 410 334 678 636 409.7 437.5

TOTAL Male 303 311 297 222 607 533 351.1 384.9

GRAND TOTAL  571 613 707 556 1285 1169 760.8 822.4

Incorporates Box Hill Institute and Box Hill Enterprises workforce data
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Workforce Employees at June 2013

Ongoing Employees Ongoing Employees FTE
Fixed  
term & Casual 
Employees

Employees 
Head  
count 
2013

Employees 
Head  
count 
2012

Full-time  
Head  
count 
2013

Full-time  
Head  
count 
2012

Part-time 
Head  
count 
2013

Part-time 
Head  
count 
2012

Full-
time 

2013

Full-
time 

2012

Part-
time 

2013

Part-
time 

2012

Full-time 
Equivalent 

2013

Full-time 
Equivalent 

2012

Jun-13 519 388 131 413.6 55.9 262.1

Jun-12 623 473 150 455.7 102.8 252.1

BHI-
BHE Ongoing Fixed term & 

Casual

Gender
Head  

Count 
2013

Head  
Count 
2012

Full-time 
Equivalent 

2013

Full-time 
Equivalent 

2012

Full-time 
Equivalent 

2013

Full-time 
Equivalent 

2012

Male 220 269 208.4 250.4 130.6 129.3

Female 299 354 261.14 308.1 131.5 122.8

Age

Under 25 2 1 2.00 1.0 9.07 6.9

25-34 38 50 35.63 45.5 34.5 26.6

35-44 106 125 94.40 108.1 62.1 59.6

45-54 169 225 155.36 202.5 67.8 75.7

55-64 177 186 158.40 168.9 72.7 73.2

Over 64 27 36 23.75 32.5 15.9 10.1

Classification

Teacher 198 245 172.44 212.4 150.5 170.7

Senior 
Educator 69 75 77.40 71.4 9.2 4.4

General 
staff 229 271 210.6 246.2 82.1 58.2

Executives 12.6 14.0

Other staff 11 32 9.1 28.5 7.7 4.8

Incorporates Box Hill Institute and Box Hill Enterprises workforce data

Employment and Conduct Principles
Box Hill Institute recruits and promotes the most suitably qualified, 
experienced and capable employees through open and transparent, 
merit based selection processes that comply with relevant legislative 
requirements. All employees are expected to conduct themselves in a 
manner consistent with the Box Hill Institute Group Code of Conduct.  All 
employees have been correctly classified in workforce data collections.
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Suzanne Ewart Joe Piper
Chair of the Board Interim Chief Executive Officer

Date:     27th February 2014 Date:    27th February 2014

Box Hill, Melbourne Box Hill, Melbourne

Joanne James
Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Date:     27th February 2014

Box Hill, Melbourne

The Chair of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer sign this declaration as delegates of,
and in accordance with a resolution of, the Board of the Box Hill Institute.

BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2013

DECLARATION BY CHAIR OF THE BOARD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

AND CHIEF FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING OFFICER

We certify that the attached financial statements for the Box Hill Institute and the consolidated
entity have been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial
Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions issued under that legislation,
Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive operating
statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes to
and forming part of the financial report, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2013 and financial position of the Institute and the consolidated entity as at
31 December 2013.

At the date of signing this financial report, we are not aware of any circumstance that would
render any particulars included in the financial report to be misleading or inaccurate. There are
reasonable grounds to believe that the Institute will be able to pay its debts as and when they
became due and payable.

BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Continuing operations
Income from transactions

Government contributions - operating 2(a)(i) 43,441     69,113     35,509     60,505     
Government contributions - capital 2(a)(ii) 3,950       5,038       3,950       5,038       
Sale of goods and services 2(b) 66,273     64,710     53,408     53,071     
Interest 2(c) 1,546       2,871       1,134       2,331       

2(d) 133          677          133          677          

Other income 2(e) 3,752       3,804       3,875       2,700       
Total income from transactions 119,094   146,213   98,007     124,322   

Expenses from transactions
Employee benefits 3(a) 81,890     90,549     68,864     76,714     
Depreciation and amortisation 3(b) 5,766       6,030       5,054       5,337       
Grants and other transfers 3(c) 60            67            57            65            
Expenditure using Government Contributions - Capital 3(d) 285          1,204       285          1,204       
Supplies and services 3(e) 15,970     19,739     13,375     16,214     
Other operating expenses 3(f) 18,652     21,997     11,322     16,255     
Total expenses from transactions 122,623   139,586   98,957     115,789   

Net result from transactions (net operating balance) (3,530)      6,627       (950)         8,533       

Other economic flows included in net result

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets 4(a) (440)         (49)           (386)         24            

4(b) (11)           (129)         (1,654)      (97)           

4(c) 482          -           -           -           

4(d) -           5,286       -           -           

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 4(e) 196          (54)           172          (105)         
Total other economic flows included in net result 227          5,053       (1,868)      (178)         

Net result from continuing operations (3,303)      11,680     (2,819)      8,355       

Net result from discontinued operations 5 3,466       1,360       -           -           

Net result 163          13,040     (2,819)      8,355       

Other economic flows –  other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Changes in physical asset revaluation reserve 16 -           32,230     -           32,209     
Changes in foreign currency translation reserve 16 (71)           -           -           -           
Total other economic flows – other comprehensive income (71)           32,230     -           32,209     
Comprehensive result 93            45,270     (2,819)      40,564     

The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Fair value of assets & services received free of charge or for 
nominal consideration

Consolidated Institute

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory 
receivables/payables

Net gain/(loss) on consolidation of the Centre for Adult 
Education (CAE)

Share of net profits/(losses) of associates and joint ventures 
excluding dividends
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Continuing operations
Income from transactions

Government contributions - operating 2(a)(i) 43,441     69,113     35,509     60,505     
Government contributions - capital 2(a)(ii) 3,950       5,038       3,950       5,038       
Sale of goods and services 2(b) 66,273     64,710     53,408     53,071     
Interest 2(c) 1,546       2,871       1,134       2,331       

2(d) 133          677          133          677          

Other income 2(e) 3,752       3,804       3,875       2,700       
Total income from transactions 119,094   146,213   98,007     124,322   

Expenses from transactions
Employee benefits 3(a) 81,890     90,549     68,864     76,714     
Depreciation and amortisation 3(b) 5,766       6,030       5,054       5,337       
Grants and other transfers 3(c) 60            67            57            65            
Expenditure using Government Contributions - Capital 3(d) 285          1,204       285          1,204       
Supplies and services 3(e) 15,970     19,739     13,375     16,214     
Other operating expenses 3(f) 18,652     21,997     11,322     16,255     
Total expenses from transactions 122,623   139,586   98,957     115,789   

Net result from transactions (net operating balance) (3,530)      6,627       (950)         8,533       

Other economic flows included in net result

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets 4(a) (440)         (49)           (386)         24            

4(b) (11)           (129)         (1,654)      (97)           

4(c) 482          -           -           -           

4(d) -           5,286       -           -           

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 4(e) 196          (54)           172          (105)         
Total other economic flows included in net result 227          5,053       (1,868)      (178)         

Net result from continuing operations (3,303)      11,680     (2,819)      8,355       

Net result from discontinued operations 5 3,466       1,360       -           -           

Net result 163          13,040     (2,819)      8,355       

Other economic flows –  other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Changes in physical asset revaluation reserve 16 -           32,230     -           32,209     
Changes in foreign currency translation reserve 16 (71)           -           -           -           
Total other economic flows – other comprehensive income (71)           32,230     -           32,209     
Comprehensive result 93            45,270     (2,819)      40,564     

The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Fair value of assets & services received free of charge or for 
nominal consideration

Consolidated Institute

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory 
receivables/payables

Net gain/(loss) on consolidation of the Centre for Adult 
Education (CAE)

Share of net profits/(losses) of associates and joint ventures 
excluding dividends
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Assets
Financial assets

Cash and deposits 6 41,164     49,978     27,789     40,315     
Receivables 7 10,832     15,351     8,899       15,239     
Investments and other financial assets 8 -           11,100     -           8,000       
Investments accounted for using the equity method 9 1,442       -           -           -           
Total financial assets 53,438     76,429     36,688     63,554     

Non-financial assets
Inventories 10 490          474          437          386          
Other non-financial assets 11 1,183       1,041       909          802          
Property, plant and equipment 12 213,182   198,715   204,685   189,595   
Intangible assets 13 176          501          128          380          
Total non-financial assets 215,031   200,731   206,159   191,163   

Total assets 268,469   277,160   242,847   254,716   

Liabilities
Payables 14 13,729     21,465     5,347       13,027     
Provisions 15 14,162     15,210     12,116     13,488     
Total liabilities 27,891     36,675     17,463     26,515     

Net assets 240,578   240,485   225,384   228,202   

Equity

Contributed capital 16(a) 27,124     27,124     27,124     27,124     
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16(b) 97,483     90,778     82,239     78,516     
Reserves 16(c) 115,971   122,583   116,021   122,562   
Net Worth 240,578   240,485   225,384   228,202   

Commitments for expenditure 18       55,223       73,432         3,998       18,487 
Contingent assets and liabilities 20          (410)          (431)               -                 -   

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Consolidated Institute

BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Consolidated (At 31 Dec 2013)
Equity at 

1 Jan 
2013

Total 
Comprehensive 

result

Transactions 
with owners 

in their 
capacity as 

owners

Equity at 
31 Dec 

2013

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 90,778    163                       6,541             97,483     
Transfers from/(to) reserves -          -                        -                 -           
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 90,778    163                       6,541             97,483     

Contributed capital 16 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     
Contribution by owners at the end of the year 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     

Physical assets revaluation reserve - land 16 47,157    -                        -                 47,157     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - building 16 66,872    -                        -                 66,872     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - plant and equipment 16 661         -                        -                 661          
Phyiscal assets revaluation reserve - cultural assets 16 102         -                        -                 102          
Foreign currency translation reserve 16 -          (71)                        -                 (71)           
Institute development fund 16 6,700      -                        (6,700)            -           
Restricted reserve fund 16 1,091      -                        159                1,250       

122,583  (71)                        (6,541)            115,971   
Total equity at the end of the year 16 240,485  93                         -                 240,577   

Institute (At 31 Dec 2013)  
Equity at 

1 Jan 
2013

Total 
Comprehensive 

result

Transactions 
with owners 

in their 
capacity as 

owners

Equity at 
31 Dec 

2013

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 78,516    (2,819)                   6,541             82,239     
Transfers from/(to) reserves -          -                        -                 -           
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 78,516    (2,819)                   6,541             82,239     

Contributed capital 16 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     
Contribution by owners at the end of the year 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     

Physical assets revaluation reserve - land 16 47,224    -                        -                 47,224     
Phyiscal assets revaluation reserve - building 16 66,886    -                        -                 66,886     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - plant and equipment 16 661         -                        -                 661          
Institute development fund 16 6,700      -                        (6,700)            -           
Restricted reserve fund 16 1,091      -                        159                1,250       

122,562  -                        (6,541)            116,021   
Total equity at the end of the year 16 228,202  (2,819)                   -                 225,384   

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  

Changes due to

Changes due to
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Consolidated (At 31 Dec 2013)
Equity at 

1 Jan 
2013

Total 
Comprehensive 

result

Transactions 
with owners 

in their 
capacity as 

owners

Equity at 
31 Dec 

2013

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 90,778    163                       6,541             97,483     
Transfers from/(to) reserves -          -                        -                 -           
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 90,778    163                       6,541             97,483     

Contributed capital 16 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     
Contribution by owners at the end of the year 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     

Physical assets revaluation reserve - land 16 47,157    -                        -                 47,157     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - building 16 66,872    -                        -                 66,872     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - plant and equipment 16 661         -                        -                 661          
Phyiscal assets revaluation reserve - cultural assets 16 102         -                        -                 102          
Foreign currency translation reserve 16 -          (71)                        -                 (71)           
Institute development fund 16 6,700      -                        (6,700)            -           
Restricted reserve fund 16 1,091      -                        159                1,250       

122,583  (71)                        (6,541)            115,971   
Total equity at the end of the year 16 240,485  93                         -                 240,577   

Institute (At 31 Dec 2013)  
Equity at 

1 Jan 
2013

Total 
Comprehensive 

result

Transactions 
with owners 

in their 
capacity as 

owners

Equity at 
31 Dec 

2013

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 78,516    (2,819)                   6,541             82,239     
Transfers from/(to) reserves -          -                        -                 -           
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 78,516    (2,819)                   6,541             82,239     

Contributed capital 16 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     
Contribution by owners at the end of the year 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     

Physical assets revaluation reserve - land 16 47,224    -                        -                 47,224     
Phyiscal assets revaluation reserve - building 16 66,886    -                        -                 66,886     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - plant and equipment 16 661         -                        -                 661          
Institute development fund 16 6,700      -                        (6,700)            -           
Restricted reserve fund 16 1,091      -                        159                1,250       

122,562  -                        (6,541)            116,021   
Total equity at the end of the year 16 228,202  (2,819)                   -                 225,384   

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  

Changes due to

Changes due to
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Consolidated (At 31 Dec 2012)
Equity at 

1 Jan 
2012

Total 
Comprehensive 

result

Transactions 
with owners 

in their 
capacity as 

owners

Equity at 
31 Dec 

2012

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 77,739    13,040                  -                 90,778     
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 77,739    13,040                  -                 90,778     

Contributed capital 16 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     
Contribution by owners at the end of the year 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     

Physical assets revaluation reserve - land 16 39,787    7,370                    -                 47,157     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - building 16 42,775    24,097                  -                 66,872     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - plant and equipment 16 -          661                       -                 661          
Phyiscal assets revaluation reserve - cultural assets 16 -          102                       -                 102          
Institute development fund 16 6,700      -                        -                 6,700       
Restricted Funds Reserve 1.24, 16 -          1,091                    -                 1,091       

89,262    33,321                  -                 122,583   
Total equity at the end of the year 16 194,125  46,361                  -                 240,485   

Institute (At Dec 2012)
Equity at 

1 Jan 
2012

Total 
Comprehensive 

result

Transactions 
with owners 

in their 
capacity as 

owners

Equity at 
31 Dec 

2012

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 70,161    8,355                    -                 78,516     
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 70,161    8,355                    -                 78,516     

Contributed capital 16 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     
Contribution by owners at the end of the year 27,124    -                        -                 27,124     

Physical assets revaluation reserve - land 16 39,787    7,437                    -                 47,224     
Physical assets revaluation reserve - building 16 42,775    24,111                  -                 66,886     
Institute development fund 16 6,700      661                       -                 7,361       
Restricted Funds Reserve 1.24, 16 -          1,091                    -                 1,091       

89,262    33,300                  -                 122,562   
Total equity at the end of the year 16 186,547  41,655                  -                 228,202   

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
 

Changes due to

Changes due to
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Government contributions - operating        44,159       70,174       36,308       61,821 
Government contributions - capital          3,950         8,638         3,950         8,638 
User fees and charges received       82,523       78,182       64,911       56,857 
Interest received         1,546         2,871         1,134         2,331 
Distribution received -           -                   2,000         1,000 
Total receipts 132,177   159,865   108,302   130,647   

Payments
Payments to suppliers and employees   (130,191)   (143,185)   (105,451)   (117,437)
Goods and services tax paid to the ATO       (3,922)       (2,969)       (3,238)       (2,271)
Total payments (134,113)  (146,154)  (108,689)  (119,708)  

Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 17 (1,936)      13,711     (387)         10,939     

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for investments -               (11,100)               -         (8,000)
Proceeds from sale of investments       11,100         1,337         8,000                9 
Proceeds on consolidation of the Centre for Adult Education (CAE) -                   1,034 -                         -   
Purchases of non-financial assets     (20,147)     (17,173)     (20,139)     (16,260)
Sales of non-financial assets -                      312 -                      312 
Proceeds from sale of business         2,240 -           -           -           
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (6,807)      (25,590)    (12,139)    (23,939)    

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8,743)      (11,878)    (12,526)    (13,000)    
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year       49,978       61,856       40,315       53,315 

           (71) -           -           -           

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 6 41,164     49,978     27,789     40,315     

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Consolidated Institute

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign 
currencies



48

BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.01

1.02

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. Historical cost is
based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

Exceptions to the historical cost convention include:

• non-financial physical assets which, subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a revalued amount being their fair
value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their
fair value; and

• the fair value of an asset other than land is generally based on its depreciated replacement value.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Institute in the preparation of the financial
statement. The accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies

Basis of accounting preparation and measurement

Statement of Compliance

The annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Box Hill Institute and controlled
entities (‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’), and the separate financial statements and notes of Box Hill Institute as an individual
parent entity (‘Parent Entity’).

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management Act
1994 (FMA) and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) which include Interpretations, issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). In particular, they are presented in a manner consistent with the
requirements of the AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other
events is reported.

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Institute.

In the application of AAS, judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

For the purposes of preparing financial statements, the Institute is classed as a not for profit entity. Where appropriate,
those AAS paragraphs applicable to not-for-profit entities have been applied.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 and the comparative information presented for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are affected by the revision.
Judgements made by management in the application of AASs that have significant effects on the financial statements
and estimates, with a risk of material adjustments in the next year, are disclosed throughout the notes to the financial
statements.
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.03

1.04 Basis of consolidation

Goodwill is recognised initially at the excess of cost over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If the fair value of the acquirer’s interest is greater than cost, the
surplus is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

All intra-Institute transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Institutes' ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Institute losing control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Institute’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Institute.

The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements and notes of the Box Hill Institute and its
controlled entities and the separate financial statements and notes of the Institute as an individual parent entity. The
Institute is a statutory body corporate, established pursuant to the act/order made by the Victorian Government under
the Enacted Act 2006. 

Reporting entity

Income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Institute and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Institute.

Business combinations occur where control over another business is obtained and results in the consolidation of its
assets and liabilities. All business combinations, including those involving entities under common control, are
accounted for by applying the purchase method.

A controlled entity is any entity over which the Institute has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing the power to govern, the existence and effect of holdings of actual
and potential voting rights are considered.

The financial statements include all the activities of the Institute. 

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Box Hill Institute
465 Elgar Road, VIC 3128

Its principal address is:

Business combinations

The purchase method requires an acquirer of the business to be identified and for the cost of the acquisition and fair
values of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities to be determined as at acquisition date, being the date
that control is obtained. Cost is determined as the aggregate of fair values of assets given, equity issued and liabilities
assumed in exchange for control together with costs directly attributable to the business combination. Any deferred
consideration payable is discounted to present value using the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.04 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

1.05 Events after reporting date

1.06 Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Commitments and contingent assets or liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense.

Associates are those entities over which the Institute exercises significant influence, but not control, generally
accompanying shareholding and voting rights of between 20% and 50%. 

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost. Under this method, the Institute’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates is recognised in net
result and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves (non-owner equity) in both the
statement of comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment.

Associated entities (associates)

Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Where the transactions result
from an agreement between the Institute and other parties, the transactions are only recognised when the agreement is
irrevocable at or before balance date. Adjustments are made to amounts recognised in the financial statements for
events which occur after the reporting date and before the date the statements are authorised for issue, where those
events provide information about conditions which existed at the reporting date. Note disclosure is made about events
between the reporting date and the date the statements are authorised for issue where the events relate to condition
which arose after the reporting date and which may have a material impact on the results of subsequent years.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as
operating cash flows.
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.07 Income from transactions

Government contributions

Sale of goods and services
(i) Student fees and charges 

(ii) Fee for Service

(iii) Revenue from sale of goods

1.08 Income from transactions 

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses on the revaluation of investments do not form part of income from
transactions, but are reported as part of income from other economic flows in the net result or as unrealised gains and
losses taken direct to equity, forming part of the total change in net worth in the comprehensive result.

Distribution from the controlled entity revenue is brought to account when the Institute's right to receive the distribution
is established.

Amounts disclosed as income are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes. Revenue is
recognised for each of the Institute’s major activities as follows:

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

(c) the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;

Interest

Other income

(e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Institute; and

(a) the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have transferred to the buyer;

Interest from cash, short-term deposits and investments is brought to account on a time proportional basis taking into
account interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

Contributions of resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when
the transferee obtains control over them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of
the contributions. Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined
and the services would have been purchased if not donated.

(b) the Institute retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold; 

Fee for service revenue is recognised by reference to the percentage completion of each contract, i.e. in the reporting
period in which the services are rendered. Where fee for service revenue of a reciprocal nature has been clearly
received in respect of programs or services to be delivered in the following year, such amounts are disclosed as
Revenue in Advance.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised by the Institute when: 

Government contributions are recognised as revenue in the period when the Institute gains control of the contributions.
Control is recognised upon receipt or notification by relevant authorities of the right to receive a contribution for the
current period.

Other comprises mainly revenue from car parking and hiring of facilities and is recognised as revenue on receipt.

Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

Student fees and charges revenue is recognised by reference to the percentage of services provided. Where student
fees and charges revenue has been clearly received in respect of courses or programs to be delivered in the following
year, any non-refundable portion of the fees is treated as revenue in the year of receipt and the balance as Revenue in
Advance. 
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.09 Expenses from transactions
Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations
(i) Defined contribution plan
Contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed when they become payable. 

(ii) Defined benefit plans

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation

Class of asset Method 2013 2012
Rate/Rates Rate/Rates

Straight 1.25%-10% 1.25%-10%

Plant & equipment Straight 6.7%-20% 6.7%-20%
Leasehold improvements Straight 33.3% 33.3%
Computers Straight 33.3% 33.3%
Motor vehicles Straight 33.3% (Residual of 40%) 33.3% (Residual of 40%)

Amortisation

The amount charged to the comprehensive operating statement in respect of superannuation represents the
contributions made by the Institute to the superannuation plan in respect of current services of current Institute staff.
Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of each plan.

The Institute does not recognise any deferred liability in respect of the plan(s) because the Institute has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as and when they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance recognises and discloses the State's
defined benefit liabilities in its finance report.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but excluding land. Depreciation
is generally calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write off the net cost or other revalued amount of each asset
over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of
the lease or estimated useful life, whichever is the shorter, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

Expenses for employee benefits are recognised when incurred, except for contributions in respect of defined benefit
plans.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Any excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate on an annual basis. 

Depreciation methods and rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the assets useful lives. Amortisation begins
when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each annual reporting period. In addition, an
assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there are indicators that the intangible asset
concerned is impaired. If so, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their
recoverable amount.

Buildings including 
components



53

BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.09 Expenses from transactions (Continued)
Grants and other transfers 

Other operating expenses
Supplies and services

Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration

1.10 Other economic flows included in net result

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets

Disposal of non-financial assets

Impairment of non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment, except for inventories. 

It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of
the asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. 

Resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value.

Other economic flows measure the change in volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not result from transactions.

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses from disposals
of non-financial assets and impairments.

Any gain or loss on disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date control of the asset is passed to the buyer
and is determined after deducting from the proceeds the carrying value of the asset at the time.

The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less
costs to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash flows is measured at the higher of the
present value of future cash flows expected to be obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell. It is deemed
that, in the event of the loss of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be replaced
unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made.

If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their
possible recoverable amount. Where an asset's carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is written
off by a charge to the comprehensive operating statement, except to the extent that the write down can be debited to an
asset revaluation reserve amount applicable to that class of asset.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Grants and other transfers to third parties are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are paid
or payable.

Supplies and services expenses are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The
carrying amounts of any inventories held-for-distribution are expensed when distributed.

If there is an indication that there has been a change in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. This reversal of the
impairment loss occurs only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior
years. 



54

BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.10 Other economic flows included in net result (Continued)
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments

Revaluation of financial instruments at fair value

1.11 Financial assets

Cash and deposits

Receivables

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments includes realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial
instruments at fair value and impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost.

The revaluation gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value excludes interest earned on financial assets which is
reported as part of income from transactions. 

A provision for doubtful receivables is made when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and
bad debts are written off when identified.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts, which are
included as borrowings on the balance sheet.

• statutory receivables, which include predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and GST input tax
credits recoverable; and

• contractual receivables, which include mainly debtors in relation to goods and services and accrued investment
income. 

Receivables consist of:

Cash and deposits, including cash equivalents, comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and those
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are held for the purpose of meeting
short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, and which are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or losses from the revaluation of the present value of
the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates.

Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments. Statutory receivables are not classified as
financial instruments.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less an allowance for impairment.
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1.11 Financial assets (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Impairment of financial assets

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
• the Institute retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a "pass through arrangement; or

The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

Where the Institute has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Institute's continuing involvement in the asset.

• the Institute has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
asset.

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional
judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in
accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

Any interest earned on the financial asset is recognised in the consolidated comprehensive operating statement as a
transaction.

• available for sale financial assets.

Investments are classified in the following categories: 

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

• financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
• loans and receivables;

At the end of each reporting period, the Institute assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments,
debts which are more than 90 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings. All financial instrument assets,
except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.

Bad and doubtful debts for financial assets are assessed on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off
by mutual consent are classified as a transaction expense. Bad debts not written off by mutual consent and the
allowance for doubtful receivables are classified as ‘other economic flows’ in the net result.

Derecognition of financial assets

Investments accounted for using the equity method

Refer Associated entities (associates) under note 1.04.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when: 
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1.12

1.13

Non-financial physical assets such as Crown land are measured at fair value with regard to the property's highest and
best use after due consideration is made for any legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the asset, public
announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may
be available in relations to the asset are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that the restrictions will no
longer apply.

The fair value of plant, equipment and vehicles, is normally determined by reference to the asset's depreciated
replacement cost. Existing depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for depreciated replacement cost
because of the short lives of the assets concerned.

Where an asset is received for no or nominal consideration, the cost is the asset’s fair value at the date of acquisition.

For accounting policy on impairment of non-financial physical assets, refer to note 1.10 on impairment of non-financial
assets.

All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net
consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or the timing of
payments.

Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the
agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of property, plant and equipment are
classified as finance infrastructure leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the comprehensive
operating statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset. The leased asset is not
recognised in the balance sheet.

Operating leases
Institute as lessee

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, the aggregate cost of incentives are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Inventories include goods held either for sale or for consumption in the ordinary course of business operations. 

All non-financial physical assets, are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Non-Financial Assets

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

Inventories

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment.
Leases

Property, plant and equipment
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1.13

Revaluations of non-financial physical assets

Intangibles

The cost of a leasehold improvements is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the remaining term of the lease
or the estimated useful life of the improvements, whichever is the shorter.

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued in accordance with FRDs issued by the Minister for
Finance. This revaluation process normally occurs every five years, based upon the asset’s Government Purpose
Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. Revaluation
increases or decreases arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Net revaluation increase (where the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation) is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the revaluation reserve, except that the
net revaluation increase shall be recognised in the net result to the extent that it reverses a net revaluation decrease in
respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment previously recognised as an expense (other economic
flows) in the net result.

Leasehold improvements

Net revaluation decreases are recognised immediately as expenses (other economic flows) in the net result, except that
the net revaluation decrease shall be recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent that a credit balance
exists in the revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment. The net revaluation
decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under revaluation
reserve.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within a class of property, plant and
equipment are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes. 

Non-Financial Assets (Continued)

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance. 

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Intangible assets are recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are
capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to the Institute. 
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1.13
Research and development costs

2013 2012
 3-5  3-5

(e) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period as incurred.

Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, and are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives as follows:

(c) the ability to use or sell the asset;
(d) how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

(a) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following are demonstrated:

(b) the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(f) the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Capitalised computer 
software 

Non-Financial Assets (Continued)

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which It is incurred. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period as
incurred.
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1.14 Liabilities
Payables

Provisions

Employee benefits

• contractual payables, such as accounts payable and unearned income. Accounts payable represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to the Institute prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when the
Institute becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services; and

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

• statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the
provision for employee benefits as non-current liabilities and are measured at a discounted value similar to other long
term employee benefits.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cashflows.

Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost.
Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial
instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a
contract.

Provisions are recognised when the Institute has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is
probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The calculation of employee benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave expected
to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in
respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal
values.

(i) Wages and salaries, and annual leave

Payables consist of: 
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1.14 Liabilities (Continued)
(ii) Long service leave

   - present value - component that is not expected to be settled within 12 months. 
   - nominal value - component that is expected to be settled within 12 months. 

(iii) Termination benefits

(iv) Employee benefits on-costs

(v) Performance Payments

1.15 Commitments

1.16 Contingent assets and liabilities

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
as an ‘other economic flow’ in the estimated consolidated comprehensive operating statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Derecognition of financial liabilities 

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Current Liability - unconditional LSL representing 7 years is disclosed as a current liability even when the Institute does
not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer settlement of
the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

Commitments include those operating, capital and other outsourcing commitments arising from non-cancellable
contractual or statutory sources and are disclosed at their nominal value and inclusive of the GST payable.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of a note (refer note
18) and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of the
GST receivable or payable respectively.

Performance payments for TAFE Executive Officers are based on a percentage of the annual salary package provided
under the contract of employment. A liability is provided for under the term of the contracts at reporting date and paid
out in the next financial year.

Employee benefits on-costs ( payroll tax, workers compensation, superannuation, annual leave and long service leave
accrued while on LSL taken in service) are recognised separately from provision for employee benefits.

Non-current liability - conditional LSL representing less than 7 years is disclosed as a non - current liability. There is an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of
service. This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value. Gain or loss following revaluation of the present
value of non-current LSL liability due to changes in bond interest rates is recognised as an other economic flow (refer to
Note 4(e)).

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Institute recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present
value.
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1.17 Equity
Contributed capital

1.18 Foreign currency translations
Functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Group entities

1.19 Materiality

1.20 Rounding of amounts

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the group’s
presentation currency are translated as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date and
(b) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates on a monthly basis.

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are recognised as a separate component of equity.
When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, a proportionate share
of such exchange differences are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on
sale where applicable.

Funding that is in the nature of contributions by the State government are treated as contributed capital when
designated in accordance with UIG Interpretation 1038 Contribution by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector
Entities. Commonwealth capital funds are not affected and are treated as income.

The functional currency of each group entity is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which that entity operates. The Institute's financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the parent
entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year end exchange rate. Non-monetary items
measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment
hedge.

Exchange difference arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to the extent that
the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity, otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

In accordance with Accounting Standard AASB1031 'Materiality', accounting policies need only be identified in the
summary of accounting policies where they are considered 'material'. Accounting policies will be considered material if
their omission, misstatement or non-disclosure has the potential, individually or collectively, to:

(a) influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report; and 

Amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

(b) affect the discharge of accountability by the management or governing body of the entity.
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1.21 Change in accounting policy
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

AASB 119 Employee benefits

The Institute has applied AASB 13 for the first time in the current year. AASB 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements. The fair value measurement requirements of AASB 13 apply to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other A-IFRS require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of AASB 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of AASB 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of
measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. 

AASB 13 requires prospective application from 1 January 2013. In addition, specific transitional provisions were given
to entities such that they need not apply the disclosure requirements set out in the Standard in comparative information
provided for periods before the initial application of the Standard. In accordance with these transitional provisions, the
Institute has not made any new disclosures required by AASB 13 for the 2012 comparative period (refer notes 1.24 and
12 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the application of AASB 13 has not had any material impact on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

In the current year, the Institute has applied AASB 119 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011) and the related
consequential amendments for the first time.

AASB 119 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting for defined benefit superannuation plans and termination
benefits. The most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in superannuation defined benefit
obligations and plan assets. This change has no impact on the Institute because the entity has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay superannuation future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance recognises and discloses the State’s defined
benefit liabilities in its financial statements.

In addition, AASB 119 also changes the definition of short-term employee benefits. These were previously benefits that
were due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the
related service, however, short-term employee benefits are now defined as benefits expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. As a
result, accrued annual leave balances which were previously classified by the Institute as short-term benefits no longer
meet this definition and are now classified as long-term benefits. This has resulted in a change of measurement for the
annual leave provision from an undiscounted to discounted basis but not for non current.

This change in classification has not materially altered the Institutes measurement of the annual leave provision.
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1.22 New accounting standards and interpretations

Effective 
Date

Impact on entity financial 
statements

1 Jan 
2015

Subject to AASB’s further 
modifications to AASB 9, 
together with the anticipated 
changes resulting from the 
staged projects on 
impairments and hedge 
accounting, details of 
impacts will be assessed.

1 Jan 
2014

The AASB have finalised 
deliberations on ED 238 and 
any modifications made to 
AASB 10 for not-for-profit 
entities, the Institute will 
need to re-assess the nature 
of its relationships with other 
entities, including those that 
are currently not 
consolidated. 

1 Jan 
2014

The AASB have finalised 
deliberations and any 
modifications made to AASB 
11 for not-for-profit entities, 
the Institute will need to 
assess the nature of 
arrangements with other 
entities in determining 
whether a joint arrangement 
exists in light of AASB 11.

AASB 9 Financial 
Instruments

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 31 December
2013 reporting period.

As at 31 December 2013, the following standards and interpretations had been issued but were not mandatory for
financial year ending 31 December 2013. The Institute has not, and does not intend to, adopt these standards early.

Standard/ 
Interpretation

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Summary

This standard simplifies requirements for the classification 
and measurement of financial assets resulting from Phase 
1 of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (AASB 139 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

This Standard forms the basis for determining which 
entities should be consolidated into an entity’s financial 
statements. AASB 10 defines ‘control’ as requiring 
exposure or rights to variable returns and the ability to 
affect those returns through power over an investee, which 
may broaden the concept of control for public sector 
entities. The AASB has issued an exposure draft ED 238  
Consolidated Financial Statements – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities that 
explains and illustrates how the principles in the Standard 
apply from the perspective of not-for-profit entities in the 
private and public sectors.

AASB 11 Joint 
Arrangements

This Standard deals with the concept of joint control, and 
sets out a new principles-based approach for determining 
the type of joint arrangement that exists and the 
corresponding accounting treatment. The new categories 
of joint arrangements under AASB 11 are more aligned to 
the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the 
arrangement. 

AASB 10 
Consolidated 
Financial 
Statements
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1.22 New accounting standards and interpretations (Continued)

Effective 
Date

Impact on entity financial 
statements

1 Jan 
2014

Impacts on the level and 
nature of the disclosures will 
be assessed based on the 
eventual implications arising 
from AASB 10, AASB 11 and 
AASB 128 Investments in 
Associates and Joint 
Ventures.

1 Jan 
2014

The impact of this standard 
will need to be assessed in 
line with the final 
deliberations by the AASB 
on the application of this 
standard to not for profit 
entities.

1 Jan 
2014

The impact of this standard 
will need to be assessed in 
line with the final 
deliberations by the AASB 
on the application of this 
standard to not for profit 
entities.

1 Jan 
2014

The Victorian Government is 
currently considering the 
impacts of Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements 
(RDRs) for certain public 
sector entities, and has not 
decided if RDRs will be 
implemented in the Victorian 
public sector.

AASB 1053 
Application of 
Tiers of Australian 
Accounting 
Standards and 
AASB 2010-2 
Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounts 
Standard arising 
from Reduced 
Disclosure 
Requirements

These standards set out the tiers of financial reporting and 
the reduced disclosure framework.

AASB 127 
Separate 
Financial 
Statements

This revised Standard prescribes the accounting and 
disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares 
separate financial statements.

AASB 128 
Investments in 
Associates and 
Joint Ventures

This revised Standard sets out the requirements for the 
application of the equity method when accounting for 
investments in associates and joint ventures.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Standard/ 
Interpretation

Summary

AASB 12 
Disclosure of 
Interests in Other 
Entities

This Standard requires disclosure of information that 
enables users of financial statements to evaluate the 
nature of, and risks associated with, interests in other 
entities and the effects of those interests on the financial 
statements. This Standard replaces the disclosure 
requirements in AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 
and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. The exposure 
draft ED 238 proposes to add some implementation 
guidance to AASB 12, explaining and illustrating the 
definition of a ‘structured entity’ from a not-for-profit  
perspective.
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1.22 New accounting standards and interpretations (Continued)

Effective 
Date

Impact on entity financial 
statements

1 Jan 
2014

If separate budget is 
presented to the parliament:
• The Institute will be 
required to restate in the 
financial statements the 
budgetary information in 
accordance with the 
presentation format 
prescribed in Australian 
Accounting Standards and 
explain the significant 
variances from the original 
budget.
If separate budget is not 
presented to the parliament:
• This Standard is not 
applicable as no budget 
disclosure is required at this 
stage.

Standard/ 
Interpretation

Summary

AASB 1055 
Budgetary
Reporting

AASB 1055 extends the scope of budgetary reporting that 
is currently applicable for the whole of government and 
general government sector (GGS) to NFP entities within 
the GGS, provided that these entities present separate 
budget to the parliament.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)
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1.23 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
is summarised below and at notes 12 and 26.4.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

In the application of the Institutes accounting policies, judgements, estimates and assumption about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities must be made. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Some of the Institutes assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability the Institute uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Institute engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. 

In addition, the following table provides an analysis of assets and liabilities that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. 

a) Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. 

b) Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

c) Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
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1.23 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation Technique(s) and key 
assumptions

Significant 
unobservable 
input(s) Refer 
Note1)

Relationship of 
unobservable 
inputs to fair 
value

2013 2012
$'000 $'000

Land - $61,285 Land - $61,285 2

Market approach - whereby subject land is 
compared to recent comparable land sales 
or sales of land with no added or nominal 
value improvement value, making 
adjustments for points of difference to fair 
value. Valuation of the subject land was 
determined by analysing land sales in 
comparable proximity to the subject 
property and allowing for shape, size, 
topography, location and other relevant 
factors specific to the land being valued. 
From the sales analysed, an appropriate 
rate per square metre has been applied to 
the subject property.   

Recent land 
sales data.

The higher the 
cost of land per 
square metre, 
the higher the  

fair value. 

Buildings and 
plant and 
equipment 
(excluding 
works in 
progress and 
leasehold 
improvements) - 
$143,699

Buildings and 
plant and 
equipment 
(excluding 
works in 
progress and 
leasehold 
improvements) - 
$116,775

3

Cost approach - Subject assets were 
valued at replacement cost of assets after 
applying the appropriate depreciation rate, 
on a useful life basis after making 
adjustments for condition and general 
maintenance. This approach was used as 
market approach was considered not 
suitable as the assets are rarely sold 
except as part of a continuing business, or 
alternatively, the improvements are of a 
specialised nature and the market buying 
price would differ materially to the market 
selling price as the asset is normally 
bought as a new asset but could only be 
sold for its residual value.

Specialised 
assets, 
estimates 
made on 
current 
replacement 
cost of asset.

The higher  the 
construction 
cost, the higher 
the fair value.

Assets/Liabilities measured at 
fair value as at:

Fair Value 
Hierarchy

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)
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1.23 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation Technique(s) and key 
assumptions

Significant 
unobservable 
input(s) Refer 
Note1)

Relationship of 
unobservable 
inputs to fair 
value

2013 2012
$'000 $'000

Investments 
accounted for 
using the equity 
method - 
$1,442

NA 2

Market Approach - Subject asset was 
valued applying the terms as per the 
contracted sale agreement entered into 
with a third party during the year.   

Sale 
Agreement 
between an 
Institute's 

controlled entity 
and a third 

party.

The higher the 
consideration 

and profit 
sharing 

arrangements 
the higher the 

fair value. 

Work in 
progress -
$1,152

Work in 
progress - 
$12,672

1
Quoted Price - Subject asset was valued 
applying prices in an active market.

NA NA

Artworks - $456 Artworks - $456 2

Market Approach - Subject assets were 
valued taking into consideration the 
historical significance, age and condition 
of artworks as well as the artists 
reputation.   

Artists 
reputation

The better the 
artist reputation 
the higher the 

price of the 
artworks.

Note 1: Unobservable inputs are defined as inputs for which market data are not available and that are developed using
the best information available about the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability.

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Assets/Liabilities measured at 
fair value as at:

Fair Value 
Hierarchy
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1.24 Comparative information

Previous 
2012

Adjusted 
2012

Previous 
2012

Adjusted 
2012

Comprehensive Operating Statement $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2(b) Sales of goods and services

Student fees and charges 8,799       6,166       8,488       5,989        
Sales of goods 2,227       4,687       1,393       3,892        
Fee for Service International 26,432     22,221     -           -           

-           -           -           -           
3(a) Employee expenses

Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances (71,813)    (68,636)    (59,898)    (58,251)    
Annual leave (2,487)      (5,809)      (1,810)      (4,605)      
Superannuation (6,770)      (6,689)      
Payroll tax (4,019)      (3,969)      
Worker's compensation (905)         (895)         
Long service leave (1,878)      (1,864)      
Termination benefits (3,589)      (2,432)      (3,159)      (2,011)      

3(e) Supplies and services
Purchase of supplies and consumables (4,404)      (4,324)      
Communication expenses (1,823)      (1,745)      
Contract and other services (4,430)      (2,886)      
Building repairs and maintenance (3,108)      (3,087)      
Minor equipment (1,476)      (1,475)      
Fees and charges (3,881)      (3,879)      

3(f) Other expenses
General expenses
Staff development (984)         (983)         
Travel and motor vehicle expenses (4,080)      (4,073)      
Other expenses (3,110)      (3,041)      

Operating lease rental expenses
Minimum lease payments (5,629)      (5,575)      

5 Net result from discontinued operations
Income 4,384       
Expenses (3,024)      

(86,928)    (86,928)    (54,986)    (54,986)    

Previous 
2012

Adjusted 
2012

Previous 
2012

Adjusted 
2012

Balance Sheet $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
15 Provisions

Current
Other Provisions 179          1,270       179          1,270        
   
   

16 Equity
Reserves
Composition of Reserves
Restricted Funds Reserve 1,091       -           1,091       -           
   

1,270       1,270       1,270       1,270        

Consolidated Institute

1. Statement of Significant accounting and policies (Continued)

Where practicable comparative amounts are presented and classified on a basis consistent with the current year. However
as a result of the Institute discontinuing an operation and reviewing definitions within Higher Education Skills Group - Annual
Financial Reporting Framework several 2012 amounts have been reclassified as follows:

Consolidated Institute



70

BOX HILL INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012
2 Income from transactions $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a) Grants and other transfers (other than contributions by owners)
Government financial assistance
(i) Government contributions - operating

State government recurrent 41,929     65,011     34,547     59,998     
Other contributions by State Government 1,512       4,102       962          507          
Total government contributions - operating 43,441     69,113     35,509     60,505     

(ii) Government contributions - capital 
Commonwealth capital 3,107       4,763       3,107       4,763       
State capital 843          275          843          275          
Total government contributions - capital 3,950       5,038       3,950       5,038       

Total government financial assistance 47,391     74,152     39,458     65,543     

(b) Sales of goods and services
Student fees and charges 11,382     6,166       10,829     5,989       
Rendering of services

Fee for service - Government 8,027       6,584       6,416       6,682       
Fee for service - International operations - onshore 4,736       5,696       2,537       2,878       
Fee for service - International operations - offshore 17,925     22,221     16,292     21,269     
Fee for service - other 20,523     19,356     13,974     12,361     
Total rendering of services 51,212     53,856     39,218     43,191     

Other non-course fees and charges
Sales of Goods 3,679       4,687       3,361       3,892       
Total other fees and charges 3,679       4,687       3,361       3,892       

Total revenue from sale of goods and services 66,273     64,710     53,408     53,071     

(c) Interest
Interest from financial assets 

Interest on bank deposits 1,546       2,871       1,134       2,331       

Total interest revenue from financial assets 1,546       2,871       1,134       2,331       

Net interest income 1,546       2,871       1,134       2,331       

(d) Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for
nominal consideration:
Assets:

Plant & Equipment 80            -           80            -           
Total Assets 80            -           80            -           

Services 53            677          53            677          
Total fair value of assets and services received free of charge 
or  for nominal consideration 133          677          133          677          

(e) Other income
Dividends from Investments

Controlled Entity -           -           2,000       1,000       
Total Dividends -           -           2,000       1,000       

Donations, bequests and contributions 247          58            217          28            
Other revenue 3,504       3,746       1,658       1,672       
Total other income 3,752       3,804       3,875       2,700       

Consolidated Institute
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2013 2012 2013 2012
3 Expenses from transactions $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a) Employee expenses
Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances 64,472     68,636     53,361     58,251     
Superannuation 6,231       6,689       5,288       5,713       
Payroll tax 3,472       3,969       2,989       3,397       
Worker's compensation 728          895          713          771          
Long service leave 872          1,864       701          1,720       
Annual leave 5,145       5,809       4,849       4,605       
Termination benefits 785          2,432       785          2,011       
Other 186          254          179          247          
Total employee expenses 81,890     90,549     68,864     76,714     

(b) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of non-current assets

Buildings 3,265       2,444       3,242       2,440       
Plant and equipment 937          1,632       919          1,611       
Motor vehicles 223          232          223          232          
Computer Equipment 241          509          234          487          
Total depreciation 4,665       4,817       4,618       4,770       

Amortisation of non-current physical and intangible assets
Leasehold improvements 977          1,031       383          467          
Software 125          182          53            100          
Total amortisation 1,102       1,215       436          567          

Total depreciation and amortisation 5,766       6,030       5,054       5,337       

(c) Grants and other transfers (other than contributions by owners)
Grants and subsidies apprentices and trainees 45            55            45            55            
Grants and subsidies other Vet Programs 15            12            12            9              
Total grants and other payments 60            67            57            65            

(d) Expenditure using government contributions - capital
Equipment 237          899          237          899          
Other 47            305          47            305          
Total grants and other payments 285          1,204       285          1,204       

(e) Supplies and services
Purchase of supplies and consumables 2,679       4,324       3,282       4,457       
Communication expenses 1,646       1,745       1,262       1,239       
Contract and other services 2,885       2,886       1,780       1,568       
Cost of goods sold/distributed (ancillary trading) 1,410       2,343       804          1,562       
Building repairs and maintenance 2,136       3,087       1,515       2,157       
Minor equipment 1,002       1,475       918          1,409       
Fees and charges 4,212       3,879       3,814       3,822       
Total supplies and services 15,970     19,739     13,375     16,214     

Consolidated Institute
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2013 2012 2013 2012
3 Expenses from transactions (Continued) $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(f) Other expenses
General expenses

Marketing and promotional expenses 3,199       6,548       1,773       5,104       
Occupancy expenses 1,634       1,548       1,356       1,276       
Audit fees and services  (Note 22) 226          229          167          167          
Staff development 1,051       983          976          894          
Travel and motor vehicle expenses 3,735       4,073       3,538       3,827       
Other expenses 2,447       3,041       1,182       1,815       
Total other expenses 12,294     16,422     8,992       13,083     

Assets - Leashold improvements -           -           66            841          
Services -           -           -           -           
Total fair value of assets and services provided free of 
charge or for nominal consideration -           -           66            841          

Operating lease rental expenses:
Minimum lease payments 6,359       5,576       2,265       2,331       
Total operating lease rental expenses 6,359       5,576       2,265       2,331       

Total other operating expenses 18,652     21,997     11,322     16,255     

Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for 
nominal consideration:

Consolidated Institute
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2013 2012 2013 2012
4 Other economic flows included in net result $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets (70)           (73)           (68)           -           
Write off of intangible and property, plant and equipment assets (345)         -           (302)         -           
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of physical assets (24)           24            (16)           24            
Total net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities (440)         (49)           (386)         24            

(b)

(153)         (11)           (1,635)      21            
Net FX gain/(loss) arising from financial instruments 141          (118)         (19)           (117)         
Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments (11)           (129)         (1,654)      (97)           

(c)

482          -           -           -           

482          -           -           -           

(d) 

Net assets acquired on consolidation -           5,973       -           -           
Write off of plant and equipment -           (687)         -           -           
Total gains/(losses) on the consolidation of the CAE -           5,286       -           -           

(e) Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service leave liability 196          (54)           172          (105)         
Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 196          (54)           172          (105)         

Net gain/(loss) arising on the consolidation of the Centre for 
Adult Education

Consolidated Institute

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets (including PPE and 
intangible assets)

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory 
receivables/payables:
Impairment of loans and receivables

Share of net profits/(losses) of associates and joint venture 
entities excluding dividends
Share of net profits/(losses) of associates excluding dividends
Total share of net profit(loss) of associates and joint ventures 
excluding dividends 
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5 Net result from discontinued operations
(a)

(b)

2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income from transactions 844          4,384       -           -           
Expenses from transactions (578)         (3,024)      -           -           

266          1,360       -           -           
Gain on sale of business 3,200       -           -           -           
Net result from discontinued operations 3,466       1,360       -           -           

2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 266          1,360       -           -           
Net cash inflow from investing activities 2,240       -           -           -           
Net increase in cash generated by the discontinued operations 2,506       1,360       -           -           

2013 2012 2013 2012
6 Cash and deposits $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash at bank and on hand 8,154       5,952       6,412       3,547       
Deposits - at call with TCV 28,654     -           21,377     -           
Australian currency deposits - at call 2,938       -           -           -           
Short term deposits - TCV 1,418       25,426     -           18,168     
Australian currency deposits -short term -           18,600     -           18,600     
Total cash and cash equivalents 41,164     49,978     27,789     40,315     

(a) Cash at bank and on hand
Cash at bank and on hand attract floating interest rates between 0.00% and 2.65% (2012: between 0.00% to 3.60%).

(b) Deposits at call

(c) Short term deposits

Institute

The deposit has a fixed interest rate of 2.60% (2012: between 3.29% and 4.33%).  The deposits matures in 30 days.

Description
During the previous year a controlled entity announced its intention to sell its Occupational English Test business. The
business was sold on 15th March 2013 with effect from 16th March 2013 and the business disposed of was reported in
these financial statements as a discontinued operation.       

Financial information relating to the discontinued operation for the period to the date of disposal is set out below:     

Financial performance and cash flow information 
The financial performance and cashflow information presented are for the period 1st January 2013 to 15th March 2013
and the year ended 31 December 2012.

Consolidated Institute

The deposits are bearing floating interest rates between 2.40% and 2.55%.

Consolidated Institute

Consolidated
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2013 2012 2013 2012
7 Receivables $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current receivables
Contractual

Trade receivables1 6,257       9,586       5,272       8,726       
Provision for doubtful contractual receivables (Refer note 7 (a) below) (262)         (133)         (186)         (110)         
Revenue receivable 3,107       3,208       2,140       2,695       
Amount receivable from:

related parties -           -           166          1,568       
Total contractual 9,102       12,661     7,391       12,879     

Statutory
Amounts owing from Victorian Government 1,589       2,562       1,508       2,307       
GST receivable from ATO -           57            -           53            
Total statutory 1,589       2,619       1,508       2,360       

Total current receivables 10,691     15,280     8,899       15,239     

Non-current receivables
Security bonds paid 141          71            -           -           
Total contractual 141          71            -           -           

Total non-current receivables 141          71            -           -           

Total receivables 10,832     15,351     8,899       15,239     

1

  2013 2012 2013 2012
(a) Movement in the provision for doubtful contractual receivables $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of the year (133)         (189)         (110)         (185)         
Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result 89            -           92            -           
Increase in provision recognised in the net result (225)         (138)         (168)         (108)         

7              194          -           183          

Balance at end of the year (262)         (133)         (186)         (110)         

(b) Ageing analysis of contractual receivables
Please refer to Note 26.3 for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables.

(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual receivables
Please refer to Note 26 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables.

Reversal of provision for receivables written off during the year as 
uncollectible

Consolidated Institute

Consolidated Institute

The average credit period on sales of goods and services is 30 days. Debtors with outstanding balances in excess of 30
days are sent reminder notices. If the outstanding balances are still outstanding after a further 30 days the debtors are then
sent a reminder notice indicating they have a further 7 days to make payment otherwise their debt will be referred to a debt
collection agency. A provision has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and services,
determined by reference to past default experience.
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2013 2012 2013 2012
8 Investments and other financial assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current investments and other financial assets
Fixed Interest bearing bills, bonds/term deposits -           11,100     -           8,000       
Total current investments and other financial assets -           11,100     -           8,000       

Total investments and other financial assets -           11,100     -           8,000       

(a) Ageing analysis of investments, loans and other financial assets

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from investments, loans and other financial assets

2013 2012 2013 2012
9 Investments accounted for using the equity method $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Non-current investments accounted for using the equity method
Movements in carrying amounts
Balance 1 January -           -           -           -           
Additions 960          -           -           -           
Share of profit for the year 482          -           -           -           

1,442       -           -           -           

2013 2012 2013 2012
10 Inventories $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current
Supplies and consumables - at cost 52            88            -           -           
Inventories held-for-sale - at cost 438          386          437          386          

Total current inventories 490          474          437          386          

2013 2012 2013 2012
11 Other non-financial assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current other non-financial assets
Prepayments 1,183       1,041       909          802          
Total current other non-financial assets 1,183       1,041       909          802          

Total other non-financial assets 1,183       1,041       909          802          

Consolidated Institute

Consolidated Institute

Consolidated Institute

Total investments accounted for using the equity method

Consolidated Institute

Please refer to Note 26.3 for the ageing analysis of investments, loans and other financial assets. 

Please refer to Note 26 for the nature and extent of risks arising from investments, loans and other financial assets.
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12 Land Buildings Work in 
progress

Plant & 
equipment 

Motor 
vehicles

Leasehold 
improvements Artworks Computers Total

Consolidated $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2012

Cost -               66,564         1,690         17,333          1,630           2,211                   -          4,340            93,767         
Valuation 52,015         25,055         -             -                -               -                      -          -                77,070         
Accumulated depreciation -               (7,609)          -             (11,344)         (581)             (1,590)                 -          (3,549)           (24,673)        
Net book amount 52,015         84,010         1,690         5,989            1,049           621                      -          791               146,164       

Opening net book amount 52,015         84,010         1,690         5,989            1,049           621                      -          791               146,164       
Additions -               3,759           10,982       606               488              1,570                   -          303               17,709         
Additions on the consolidation of 
CAE 1,900           144              -             23                 -               6,367                   354         33                 8,821           

Disposals -               -               -             (7)                  (281)             -                      -          -                (288)             
Net revaluation increments/ 
decrements 7,370           24,097         -             549               -               -                      102         112               32,230         

Impairment loss through profit 
and loss -               (73)               -             -                -               -                      -          -                (73)               

Depreciation and amortisation 
expense 2 -               (2,444)          -             (1,632)           (232)             (1,031)                 -          (509)              (5,848)          

Write off -               -               -             -                -               -                      -          -                -               
Closing net book amount 61,285         109,493       12,672       5,528            1,024           7,527                   456         730               198,715       

At 31 December 2012
Cost -               -               -             -                -               13,786                 -          -                13,786         
Valuation 61,285         109,493       12,672       5,528            1,024           -                      456         730               191,188       
Accumulated depreciation -               -               -             -                -               (6,259)                 -          -                (6,259)          
Net book amount 61,285         109,493       12,672       5,528            1,024           7,527                   456         730               198,715       

Opening net book amount 61,285         109,493       12,672       5,528            1,024           7,527                   456         730               198,715       
Additions -               18,865         -             775               157              84                       -          549               20,430         
Disposals -               -               -             (27)                (161)             -                      -          -                (188)             
Transfers from/(to) -               11,520         (11,520)      -                -               -                      -          -                -               
Impairment loss through profit 
and loss -               -               -             (70)                -               -                      -          -                (70)               

Depreciation and amortisation 
expense 2 -               (3,265)          -             (936)              (223)             (977)                    -          (242)              (5,643)          

Write off -               -               -             (19)                -               (44)                      -          -                (63)               
Closing net book amount 61,285         136,613       1,152         5,252            797              6,590                   456         1,037            213,182       

At 31 December 2013
Cost -               30,385         1,152         754               144              13,803                 -          549               46,787         
Valuation 61,285         109,493       -             5,502            863              -                      456         730               178,329       
Accumulated depreciation -               (3,265)          -             (1,004)           (210)             (7,213)                 -          (242)              (11,934)        
Net book amount 61,285         136,613       1,152         5,252            797              6,590                   456         1,037            213,182       

Notes
1. Property, plant and equipment includes all operational assets.
2. The useful lives of assets as stated in Note 1 are used in the calculation of depreciation and amortisation as shown in note 3.

Property, plant and equipment 1

Year ended 31 December 2012

Year ended 31 December 2013
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12 Land Buildings Work in 
progress

Plant & 
equipment 

Motor 
vehicles

Leasehold 
improvements Artworks Computers Total

Institute $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2012

Cost -               66,564         1,690         17,068          1,629           2,066                   -          4,259            93,276         
Valuation 52,015         25,055         -             -                -               -                      -          -                77,070         
Accumulated depreciation -               (7,609)          -             (11,132)         (581)             (1,445)                 -          (3,476)           (24,243)        
Net book amount 52,015         84,010         1,690         5,936            1,048           621                      -          783               146,103       

Opening net book amount 52,015         84,010         1,690         5,936            1,048           621                      -          783               146,103       
Additions -               3,759           10,982       606               489              669                      -          303               16,808         
Disposals -               -               -             (7)                  (281)             -                      -          -                (288)             
Depreciation and amortisation 
expense 2 -               (2,440)          -             (1,611)           (232)             (467)                    -          (487)              (5,237)          

Write off -               -               -             -                -               -                      -          -                -               
Closing net book amount 59,452         109,440       12,672       5,473            1,024           823                      -          711               189,595       

At 31 December 2012
Cost -               -               12,672       -                -               2,735                   -          -                15,407         
Valuation 59,452         109,440       -             5,473            1,024           -                      -          711               176,100       
Accumulated depreciation -               -               -             -                -               (1,912)                 -          -                (1,912)          
Net book amount 59,452         109,440       12,672       5,473            1,024           823                      -          711               189,595       

Opening net book amount 59,452         109,440       12,672       5,473            1,024           823                      -          711               189,595       
Additions -               18,865         -             756               157              12                       -          549               20,339         
Disposals -               -               -             -                (161)             -                      -          -                (161)             
Transfers from/(to) -               11,520         (11,520)      -                -               -                      -          -                -               
Impairment loss through profit 
and loss -               -               -             (68)                -               -                      -          -                (68)               

Depreciation and amortisation 
expense 2 -               (3,242)          -             (919)              (223)             (383)                    -          (234)              (5,001)          

Write off -               -               -             (19)                -               -                      -          -                (19)               
Closing net book amount 59,452         136,583       1,152         5,223            797              452                      -          1,026            204,685       

At 31 December 2013
Cost -               30,385         1,152         754               144              2,747                   -          549               35,731         
Valuation 59,452         109,440       -             5,455            863              -                      -          711               175,921       
Accumulated depreciation -               (3,242)          -             (986)              (210)             (2,295)                 -          (234)              (6,967)          
Net book amount 59,452         136,583       1,152         5,223            797              452                      -          1,026            204,685       

Notes
1. Property, plant and equipment includes all operational assets.
2. The useful lives of assets as stated in Note 1 are used in the calculation of depreciation and amortisation as shown in note 3.

Property, plant and equipment 1 

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012

Year ended 31 December 2013
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(a) Valuations of property, plant and equipment

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value           

as at        
31/12/13

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Land -                   61,285 -                   61,285
Buildings (excluding work in progress) -                   -                   136,614 136,614

-                   -                   7,085 7,085

Works in progress 1,152 -                   -                   1,152
Artworks -                   456                  -                   456

1,152 61,741 143,699 206,592
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

12 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Plant and Equipment (excluding leaseholds 
improvements)

Fair value assessments have been performed at 31 December 2013 for all classes of assets. This assessment
demonstrated that fair value was materially similar to carrying value, and therefore a full revaluation was not required this
year. The next scheduled full revaluation for this purpose will be conducted in 2017.

The fair value of land was determined after applying the fair value derived by the Valuer General as at 31 December
2012. The Valuer General in determining this adopted the market approach whereby subject land is compared to recent
comparable land sales or sales of land with no added or nominal value improvement value, making adjustments for points
of difference to fair value. Valuation of the subject land was determined by analysing land sales in comparable proximity
to the subject property and allowing for shape, size, topography, location and other relevant factors specific to the land
being valued. From the sales analysed, an appropriate rate per square meter has been applied to the subject property. As
at 31 December 2013 the Institute used the Valuer General's land indices to establish if these values had materially
moved.  No materially movement was observed.

The fair value of buildings (excluding works in progress), plant and equipment (excluding leasehold improvements) was
determined after applying the fair value derived by the Valuer General as at 31 December 2012. The Valuer General in
determining this adopted the cost approach whereby subject assets were valued at replacement cost of assets after
applying the appropriate depreciation rate, on a useful life basis after making adjustments for condition and general
maintenance. This approach was used as market approach was considered not suitable as the assets are rarely sold
except as part of a continuing business, or alternatively, the improvements are of a specialised nature and the market
buying price would differ materially to the market selling price as the asset is normally bought as a new asset but could
only be sold for its residual value. As at 31 December 2013 the Institute used the Valuer General's building indices to
establish if these building values had materially moved and used the Vauler General to assist in establishing whether the
plant and equipment  values had moved materially. No materially movement was observed in either instances.

For leasehold improvements the Institute considered whether there is evidence that a market based fair value exists for
these leasehold improvements and whether the evidence indicates a fair value materially different from the existing
carrying amount. The assessment identified there is no market for which fair value could be reliably measured. As such,
the Institute considers that the carrying amount represents a fair approximation of fair value for leasehold improvements.    

The fair value of work in progress was derived by using quoted prices in an active market. 

The fair value of artworks was determined after applying the valuation adopted by a Valuer as at 31 December 2012. In
determing the fair value the Valuer took into consideration the historical significance, age and condition of artworks as
well as the artists reputation. The Institute considers that the carrying amount represents a fair approximation of fair value
for artworks as at 31 December 2013.

Details of the Institute's property, plant and equipment information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013
are as follows:
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2013 2012 2013 2012
13 Intangible assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Computer software at cost 1,711       1,921       1,400       1,610       
Accumulated amortisation (1,535)      (1,420)      (1,272)      (1,230)      
Net Book Value 176          501          128          380          

Movement in intangible assets
Opening net book value 501          427          380          347          
Additions 84            256          84            133          
Amortisation charge (126)         (182)         (53)           (100)         
Write Off (283)         -           (283)         -           
Closing net book value 176          501          128          380          

2013 2012 2013 2012
14 Payables $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current
Contractual

Supplies and Services 6,478       9,100       3,781       7,673       
Lease liabilities 242          235          -           -           
Revenue in Advance 4,459       5,719       1,260       1,553       

Statutory
Amount owing to government and agencies -           3,801       -           3,801       
FBT Payable 67            -           60            -           
GST payable 228          49            246          -           
Total current payables 11,474     18,904     5,347       13,027     

Non-current
Lease liabilties 2,255       2,561       -           -           
Total non-current payables 2,255       2,561       -           -           

Total payables 13,729     21,465     5,347       13,027     

The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity's and Institute's payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Foreign currency risk 
Australian Dollars 13,729     21,465     5,347       13,027     

13,729     21,465     5,347       13,027     

Consolidated Institute

Consolidated Institute
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2013 2012 2013 2012
15 Provisions $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current provisions 
Employee benefits

Annual leave 2,367       2,744       1,933       2,229       
Long service leave 660          1,013       551          949          
Accrued days off 72            58            47            47            
Termination benefits 25            171          4              92            
Other -           569          -           556          

Other provisions (Refer note 15 (a) below 1,143       179          798          179          
Total current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months 4,267       4,735       3,333       4,051       

Current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months
Employee benefits

Annual leave 296          779          215          646          
Long service leave 7,587       7,482       6,794       6,825       

Total current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months 7,884       8,261       7,009       7,471       
Total current provisions 12,151     12,996     10,342     11,522     

Non-current
Employee benefits:

Long service leave 1,810       2,019       1,573       1,771       
Other Provisions (Refer note 15(a) below) 201          195          201          195          
Total non-current provisions 2,011       2,214       1,774       1,966       

Total provisions 14,162     15,210     12,116     13,488     

15(a) Movements in Other Provisions

Carrying amount at start of year 179          791          179          791          
Additional provisions recognised 1,098       749          753          749          
Amounts used (134)         (270)         (134)         (270)         
Prior year adjustment (Refer note 1.24) -           (1,091)      -           (1,091)      
Carrying amount at end of year 1,143       179          798          179          

Carrying amount at start of year 195          189          195          189          
Additional provisions recognised 6              6              6              6              
Carrying amount at end of year 201          195          201          195          

Current Provisions expected to be settled within 12 months

Non Current Provisions

Consolidated Institute

Movements in other provisions (other than employee provisions)
during the financial year are set out below:
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2013 2012 2013 2012
16 Equity $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a) Contributed Capital
Balance at 1 January 27,124     27,124     27,124     27,124     
Balance at 31 December 27,124     27,124     27,124     27,124     

(b) Accumulated surplus / (deficit)
Balance at 1 January 90,778     77,739     78,516     70,161     
Net operating result for the year 163          13,040     (2,819)      8,355       
Transfer from/(to)reserves 6,541       -           6,541       -           
Balance at 31 December 97,483     90,778     82,239     78,516     

(c) Reserves
Composition of Reserves
Physical asset revaluation reserve 1

Land 47,157     47,157     47,224     47,224     
Buildings 66,872     66,872     66,886     66,886     
Plant and Equipment 661          661          661          661          
Cultural Assets 102          102          -           -           

Foreign currency translation reserve 2 (71)           -           -           -           
Institute development fund 3 -           6,700       -           6,700       
Restricted funds reserve 4 1,250       1,091       1,250       1,091       
Balance at 31 December 115,971   122,583   116,021   122,562   

Total equity 240,577   240,485   225,384   228,202   

Consolidated Institute
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2013 2012 2013 2012
16 Movements in Reserves $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Physical asset revaluation reserve - land
Balance at 1 January 47,157     39,787     47,224     39,787     
Revaluation increment on non-current assets -           7,370       -           7,437       
Balance at 31 December 47,157     47,157     47,224     47,224     
Physical asset revaluation reserve - buildings
Balance at 1 January 66,872     42,775     66,886     42,775     
Revaluation increment on non-current assets -           24,097     -           24,111     
Balance at 31 December 66,872     66,872     66,886     66,886     
Physical asset revaluation reserve - plant and equipment
Balance at 1 January 661          -           661          -           
Revaluation increment on non-current assets -           661          -           661          
Balance at 31 December 661          661          661          661          
Physical asset revaluation reserve - cultural assets 661          
Balance at 1 January 102          -           -           -           
Revaluation increment on non-current assets -           102          -           -           
Balance at 31 December 102          102          -           -           
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at 1 January -           -           -           -           

(71)           -           -           -           

Balance at 31 December (71)           -           -           -           
Institute development fund -           -           -           -           
Balance at 1 January 6,700       6,700       6,700       6,700       
Transfer from/(to) accumulated surplus (6,700)      -           (6,700)      -           
Balance at 31 December -           6,700       -           6,700       
Restricted funds reserve -           -           -           -           
Balance at 1 January (Refer note 1.21) 1,091       1,091       1,091       1,091       

159          -           159          -           
Balance at 31 December 1,250       1,091       1,250       1,091       

Nature and purpose of reserves 
1 Physical asset revaluation reserve

2 Foreign currency translation reserve 

3 Institute development fund

4 Restricted funds reserve
This reserve reflects net surpluses derived from donations by external parties which can only be applied to restricted
purposes. 

Consolidated Institute

The physical asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current
assets as described in note 12.

The Institute development fund was used to set aside funds for the future development of the Institute through the purchase
of properties and investments in strategic initiatives as identified by the Board. A decision has now been made by the
Institue to close the fund. 

Exchange differences arising on translating the net assets of foreign 
operations

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to accumulate exchange differences relating to the results and net assets of
the Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Australian Dollars).

Transfer from/(to) accumulated surplus
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2013 2012 2013 2012
17 Cash flow information $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Net operating result for the year 163          13,040     (2,819)      8,355       

Non-cash flows in operating result
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 5,766       6,030       5,054       5,337       
Net (gain) / loss on sale of non-current assets 24            (24)           16            (24)           
Net (gain) / loss on the consolidation of the CAE -           (5,286)      -           -           
Fair value of assets received free of charge (133)         (677)         (133)         (677)         
Write-off of property, plant & equipment 345          -           302          -           
Impairment and forgiveness of loans and receivables 153          -           1,635       -           
Impairment of non-current assets 70            73            68            -           
Gain on sale of business (3,200)      -           -           -           
Total non-cash flows in operating result 3,026       116          6,942       4,636       
Share of associate's (profits)/losses, excluding dividends (482)         -           -           -           
Total movements included in investing and financing activities (482)         -           -           -           

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 4,366       1,881       4,705       1,357       
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (16)           172          (51)           161          
Decrease / (increase) in other non financial assets (142)         (159)         (107)         (231)         
Increase / (decrease) in payables (7,732)      3,530       (7,684)      (1,426)      
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefits (2,016)      (1,699)      (1,996)      (1,669)      
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 897          (3,170)      624          (244)         
Total change in operating assets and liabilities (4,642)      555          (4,510)      (2,052)      

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities (1,936)      13,711     (387)         10,939     

2013 2012 2013 2012
18 Commitments for expenditure $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a) Capital commitments

Property, Plant and Equipment
Payable:

Within one year 791          15,529     791          15,529     
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 791          15,529     791          15,529     
GST reclaimable on the above (72)           (1,412)      (72)           (1,412)      
Net Commitments Property, Plant and Equipment 719          14,117     719          14,117     

Consolidated Institute

Reconciliation of operating result after income tax to net cash 
flows from operating activities

Consolidated Institute

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not 
recognised as liabilities is as follows:
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2013 2012 2013 2012
18 Commitments for expenditure (Continued) $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(b) Lease commitments

Within one year 5,343       6,168       1,736       2,304       
Later than one year but not later than five years 15,899     16,606     1,289       1,897       
Later than five years 38,744     42,499     582          606          
Total lease commitments 59,986     65,273     3,607       4,807       
GST reclaimable on the above (5,482)      (5,958)      (328)         (437)         
Net commitments operating leases 54,504     59,315     3,279       4,370       

Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases 54,504     59,315     3,279       4,370       
Total lease commitments 54,504     59,315     3,279       4,370       

 

2013 2012 2013 2012
19 Leased assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

253 Flinders Lane - City Library 6,036       6,814       -           -           
253 Flinders Lane - Shop front (Café) 801          899          -           -           
278 Flinders Lane - Kangan Batman Institute of TAFE 78            264          -           -           
Gross amount of leased assets 6,915       7,977       -           -           

Operating lease receivables
Non-cancellable operating lease receivables

Within one year 978          1,062       -           -           
Later than one year but not later than five years 3,850       3,827       -           -           
Later than five years 2,087       3,088       -           -           
Total operating lease receivables 6,915       7,977       -           -           
GST reclaimable on the above (629)         (725)         -           -           
Net commitments operating lease receivables 6,286       7,252       -           -           

As at the reporting date the Centre for Adult Education leased out the 
following assets:

Consolidated Institute

The Institute leases motor vehicles, property, digital multifunction devices and associated services and digital document
systems under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one to three years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. Also the Institute leases a bridge over Elgar Road. This lease is due to expire in thirty
two years.

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting 
date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:

Payments due

Consolidated Institute
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2013 2012 2013 2012
20 Contingent assets and contingent  liabilities $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Contingent liabilties
In respect of business undertakings:

Bank guarantee held at reporting date:
271 Collins Street (238)         (238)         -           -           
Trust Co Ltd (172)         (193)         -           -           

Net estimated contingent liabilities (410)         (431)         -           -           

21 Subsequent Events
Events occurring after the balance sheet date
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting period which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Institute, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the 
Institute in future financial years.

Consolidated Institute

Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent assets and 
contingent liabilities, classified in accordance with the party from whom the 
liability could arise and for which no provisions are included in the 
accounts, are as follows:
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2013 2012 2013 2012
22 Remuneration of auditors $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Remuneration of Victorian Auditor General's Office for:
Audit of the financial report 90            56            42            41            
Total remuneration of Victoria Auditor General's Office 90            56            42            41            

Remuneration of other auditors
Other assurance services 136          173          125          126          
Total remuneration of other auditors of subsidiaries 136          173          125          126          

Total Remuneration of auditors 226          229          167          167          

23 Superannuation

2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Paid Contribution for the Year
Defined benefit plans:

State Superannuation Fund – revised and new 738          816          650          781          
Other 7              10            7              10            
Total defined benefit plans 745          826          657          791          

Defined contribution plans:
VicSuper 3,517       3,667       2,957       3,381       
Other 1,985       2,277       1,674       1,541       
Total defined contribution plans 5,502       5,944       4,631       4,922       

Total paid contribution for the year 6,247       6,770       5,288       5,713       

Contribution Outstanding at Year End
Defined contribution plans:

VicSuper 103          193          83            160          
Other 89            160          69            154          
Total defined contribution plans 192          353          152          314          

Total 192          353          152          314          

Consolidated Institute

The bases for contributions are determined by the various schemes.

The above amounts were measured as at 31 December each year, or in the case of employer contributions they relate to
the years ended 31 December.

Employees of the Institute are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the Institute contributes to both defined benefit
and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plan(s) provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.

The Institute does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions
as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance recognises and discloses the State’s defined benefit liabilities in its
financial statements.

However, superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the
Comprehensive Operating Statement of the Institute.

The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by the Institute are as follows:

Consolidated Institute
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24 Key management personnel disclosures

Responsible persons related disclosures

(i) Minister

(ii) Members of the Board of Box Hill Institute (Note c)

Ms Suzanne Ewart (Chair of the Board)
Ms Barbara Elizabeth White 
Mr Phillip Davies
Mr John David Maddock
Mr Francis Bruce Thompson
Ms Noelene Duff
Ms Helen Buckingham 
Mr Philip Douglas Belcher
Mr Ian Hind
Ms Janet Compton
Mr Michael Zangmeister 
Mr Greg Malone 
Mr Glen Walker

2013 2012 2013 2012
 Remuneration of Board members $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

 346 80  346 80

No. No. No. No. 
Income range

 
$0  2  10  2 10

$10,000 - $19,999  3  -  3  -
$20,000 - $29,999  6  -  6  -
$50,000 - $59,999  1  -  1  -
$70,000 - $79,999  -  -  -  -
$80,000 - $89,999  -  1  - 1
$120,000 - $120,999  -  -  -  -
$310,000 - $319,999  -  -  -  -
Total number of Board members  12  11  12  11

16/04/2013 - 31/12/2013GIC Appointed 

01/06/2013 - 31/12/2013
Ex Officio 01/01/2013 - 15/04/2013

Ministerial Nominee 01/01/2013 - 31/12/2013

01/01/2013 - 31/12/2013

Relevant Period

01/01/2013 - 31/12/2013
01/01/2013 - 15/04/2013
01/01/2013 - 31/12/2013

Name

Board Nominee

Board Nominee
Elected Staff

Board Coopted
Ministerial Nominee

Category of 
Appointment

01/01/2013 - 31/12/2013
01/01/2013 - 06/11/2013
01/01/2013 - 31/12/2013
01/01/2013 - 15/04/2013
01/01/2013 - 31/03/2013

In accordance with the directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following
disclosures are made for the responsible Ministers and responsible Members of Council.

The relevant Minister is The Hon Peter Hall MP, Minister for Higher Education and Skills. Remuneration of the Ministers
is disclosed in the financial report of the Department of Premier and Cabinet. Other relevant interests are declared in the
Register of Members interests which is completed by each member of the Parliament.

Remuneration received, or due and receivable from the Institute in
connection with the management of the Institute. Includes termination
payments and bonuses paid at end of contracts. 

The number of Board members whose remuneration from the Institute
was within the specified bands are as follows:

Consolidated Institute

Ministerial Nominee

Ministerial Nominee
Board Nominee
Ministerial Nominee

Board Nominee
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24 Key management personnel disclosures (Continued)
Responsible persons related disclosures (Continued)
(iii) Executive officers remuneration

2013 2012 2013 2012
 Executive officers' remuneration $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Base remuneration of executive officers 2,683       3,079       2,391       2,851            

Total remuneration of executive officers (Note d) 3,261       3,259       2,956       3,009            

No No No No
Income range

$110,000-$119,999  - 1  - -
$130,000-$139,999  - 1  - -
$140,000-$149,999  1 -  - -
$150,000-$159,999  - 1  - 1
$160,000-$169,999  1 2  - 2
$180,000-$189,999  1 1  1 1
$190,000-$199,999  3 5  3 5
$200,000-$209,999  2 3  2 3
$210,000-$219,999  - 1  - 1
$220,000-$229,999  2 1  2 1
$240,000-$249,999  1 -  1 -
$260,000-$269,999  1 -  1 -
$290,000-$299,999  1 -  1 -
$310,000-$319,999  - 1  - 1
$510,000-$519,999  1  1
Total executive officers  14 17  12 15
Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) (Notes a and b)  14 17  12 15

(d) The Chief Executive Officer was a board member for the period 1st January 2013 to 15th April 2013. Subsequent to this
date the Chief Executive Officer became an executive officer. As such it has been decided to disclose the Chief Executive's
total remuneration for the current year as forming part of total executives officers remuneration rather than as forming part of
remuneration of board members. Remuneration of board members and executive officers remuneration comparatives have
been adjusted in line with this change. 

(c) As a result of the Constitution of the Box Hill Institute and the Centre for Adult Education Order 2013 becoming effective
from 15 April 2013 a new Board was established to effectively oversee and govern the Institute and the Centre for Adult
Education. For the purposes of disclosures above the dates disclosed are relevant to members of both Boards. 

(e) Several factors have affected total remuneration payable to executives over the year. A number of executive officers
retired, resigned or had completed the full term of their contracts in the past year. This has had a significant impact on total
remuneration figures due to the inclusion of annual leave, long-service leave and completion of contract benefits.

(a) The number of executive officers making up the base and total remuneration is the same as above.
Note:

The number of executive officers whose remuneration from the Institute
was within the specified bands are as follows:

The number of executive officers, whose total remuneration exceeded
$100,000 during the financial year are shown in their relevant income
bands. The base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long
service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.

InstituteConsolidated

(b) Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting period. 
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25 Controlled Entities

Country of 
Incorporation Class of 

Shares

2013 2012
% %

Box Hill Enterprises Ltd Australia Limited by 
guarantee 100% 100%

Centre for Adult Education Australia  - 100% 100%

Box Hill Institute Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore Limited by 
shares 100% 100%

26.1 Financial Instruments
Financial risk management
(i) Financial risk management objectives

(ii) Financial risk exposures and management

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in note 1 of the financial statements.

The Institute's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits at bank, short and long term investments and accounts
receivables and payables 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following controlled entities in
accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 1.04:

Equity holding

The Institute's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Institute's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Institute by adhering to principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by management on a
continuous basis. The Institute does not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The Institute uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include
sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate, foreign exchange and other price risks, ageing analysis for credit risk and
data analysis in respect of investment portfolios to determine market risk.

The main risks the Institute is exposed to through its financial instruments are market risk, foreign currency risk, price risk,
funding risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
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26.1 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continued)

Carrying amount of financial instruments by category:
2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets
Cash and Deposits (Note 6) 41,164          49,978    27,789    40,315    
Receivables (a) (Note 7) 9,243            12,732    7,391      12,879    
Investments (Note 8) -                11,100    -          8,000      

50,407          73,810    35,180    61,194    

Financial liabilities
Payables (a) (Note 14) 8,974            11,896    3,781      7,673      

8,974            11,896    3,781      7,673      

Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category:
2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets
Cash and Deposits (Note 2c) 1,546            2,871      1,134      2,331      

1,546            2,871      1,134      2,331      
Note:

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Consolidated

Consolidated

The Institute in its daily operations is exposed to a number of market risks. Market risks relate to the risk that market rates
and prices will change and that this will have an adverse affect on the operating result and /or net worth of the Institute.
e.g. an adverse movement in interest rates or foreign currency exchange rates.

The Board ensures that all market risk exposure is consistent with the Institute's business strategy and within the risk
tolerance of the Institute. Regular risk reports are presented to the Board.

There has been no significant change in the Institute's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
market risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

The Institute is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currencies arising from the delivery of services in currencies other than
Australian dollars.

(iii) Categorisation of financial instruments
Institute

(a) Receivables and payables disclosed here exclude statutory receivables and statutory payables.

Institute

There has been no significant change in the Institute's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
foreign currency risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
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26.1 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continued)
(ii) Financial risk exposures and management (Continued)

Price risk

Interest rate risk

Funding risk

Concentrations of credit risk

There has been no significant change in the Institute's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
credit risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.              

- payment terms are 30 days from date of invoice;

There are no material amounts of collateral held as security at 31 December 2013.

Credit risk in sales of goods and services is managed in the following ways:

- debtors with outstanding balances in excess of 30 days are sent a reminder notice

Funding risk is the risk of over reliance on a funding source to the extent that a change in that funding source could impact
on the operating result for the current year and future years.

The Institute manages funding risk by continuing to diversify and increase funding from Commercial activities, both
domestically and off shore.

Credit risk in cash at bank, deposits at call and term deposits is managed by only utilising banks with a minimum of an
"A+" rating. 

The Institute is exposed to price risk in respect of changes to the market price of investments.

There has been no significant change in the Institute's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
funding risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised
financial assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance
sheet and notes to the financial statements.

The objective is to manage the rate risk to achieve stable and sustainable net interest earnings in the long term. This is
managed predominately through a mixture of short term and longer term investments.

Interest rate risk arises from the potential for a change in interest rates to change the expected net interest earnings in the
current reporting period and in future years. Similarly, interest rate risk also arises from the potential for a change in
interest rates to cause a fluctuation in the fair value of the financial instruments.

- debtors with outstanding balances in excess of 60 days are sent a reminder notice indicating that they have a
further 7 days to make payment otherwise their debt will be referred to a debt collection agency.

There has been no significant change in the Institute's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
price risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
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26.1 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continued)
(ii) Financial risk exposures and management (Continued)

Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the institute's governing body, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity requirements. The institute manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
There has been no significant change in the Institute's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
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26.2 Financial instruments
Summarised sensitivity analysis

Result Equity Result Equity Result Equity Result Equity
31 December 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,154    (82)        (82)        82         82         (8)          (8)          8           8           
Deposits (at call and short 
term) 33,009  (330)      (330)      330       330       -        -        -        -        

Receivables (a) 9,243    (92)        (92)        92         92         -        -        -        -        
Term deposit, investment & 
other financial assets -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        

Total increase/ (decrease) in 
financial assets 50,407  (504)      (504)      504       504       (8)          (8)          8           8           

Financial liabilities
Payables (a) 8,974    90         90         (90)        (90)        -        -        -        -        
Total increase/ (decrease) in 
financial liabilities 8,974    90         90         (90)        (90)        -        -        -        -        

Total increase/ (decrease) 59,381  (414)      (414)      414       414       (8)          (8)          8           8           

Result Equity Result Equity Result Equity Result Equity
31 December 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,952    (60)        (60)        60         60         (8)          (8)          8           8           
Deposits (at call and short 
term) 44,026  (440)      (440)      440       440       -        -        -        -        

Receivables (a) 12,732  (127)      (127)      127       127       -        -        -        -        
Term deposit, investment & 
other financial assets 11,100  (111)      (111)      111       111       -        -        -        -        

Total increase/ (decrease) in 
financial assets 73,810  (738)      (738)      738       738       (8)          (8)          8           8           

Financial liabilities
Payables (a) 11,896  119       119       (119)      (119)      -        -        -        -        
Total increase/ (decrease) in 
financial liabilities 11,896  119       119       (119)      (119)      -        -        -        -        

Total increase/ (decrease) 85,706  (619)      (619)      619       619       (8)          (8)          8           8           

The following table summarises the sensitivity of the Institute’s financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk
and foreign exchange risk.  The Institute did not have any exposures to other price risk at the end of the financial year.

Foreign exchange risk

Note (a) Receivables and payables disclosed here as financial instruments exclude statutory receivable and statutory payables.

+100bps -10% +10%

-100bps +100bps -10% +10%

Carrying 
amount

Carrying 
amount

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Foreign exchange risk
-100bps
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26.3 Financial instruments
(i) Financial instrument composition and interest rate exposure

Consolidated

Weighted 
average 

effective 
rate

Floating 
interest 

rate

Within 
1 year 1-5 years

More 
than 

5 years

Non-
Interest 
Bearing

Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

per 
Balance 

Sheet
$`000 $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 2.32% 7,574     -       -         -       581       8,154      
Deposits (at call and short term) 2.54% 31,592   -       -         -       1,418    33,009    

Contractual receivables
Trade receivables -          -         -       -         -       5,995    5,995      
Revenue receivables -          -         -       -         -       3,107    3,107      
Security bond paid -          -         -       -         -       141       141         

Total financial assets 39,165   -       -         -       11,241  50,407    
 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables -          -         -       -         -       8,974    8,974      
Total financial liabilities -          -         -       -         -       8,974    8,974      

Consolidated

Weighted 
average 

effective 
rate

Floating 
interest 

rate

Within 
1 year 1-5 years

More 
than 

5 years

Non-
Interest 
Bearing

Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

per 
Balance 

Sheet
$`000 $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 3.49% 5,363     -       -         -       589       5,952      
Deposits (at call and shor term) 3.86% 44,026   -       -         -       -        44,026    

Contractual receivables -         
Trade receivables (a) -          -         -       -         -       9,453    9,453      
Revenue receivables (a) -          -         -       -         -       3,208    3,208      
Security bonds (a) -          -         -       -         -       71         71           

-         
Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term 
deposits 4.41% -         11,100 -         -       -        11,100    

Total financial assets 49,389   11,100 -         -       13,321  73,810    
 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables -          -         -       -         -       11,986  11,986    
Total financial liabilities -          -         -       -         -       11,986  11,986    

The tables below reflect the undiscounted contractual settlement terms for financial instruments of a fixed period of
maturity, as well as management’s expectations of the settlement period for all other financial instruments. As such, the
amounts may not reconcile to the balance sheet.

2013

2012

Investments, loans and other financial assets

Note (a) Receivables and payables disclosed here as financial instruments exclude statutory receivable and statutory payables.
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26.3 Financial instruments (Continued)
 (ii) Ageing analysis of financial assets

Less 
than 

1 month

1‑3
 months

3 
months 
– 1 year

1‑5 
years

Consolidated $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000 $`000

Contractual receivables
Trade receivables (a) 6,257      3,573     1,322   959        119      22         262         
Revenue receivables (a) 3,107      3,107     -       -         -       -        -         
Security bonds (a) 141         141        -       -         -       -        -         

Investments, loans and other financial assets
Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term 
deposits -          -         -       -         -       -        -         

Total 2013 financial assets 9,505      6,821     1,322   959        119      22         262         

Financial liabilities
Payables (a) 8,974      6,478     15        31          196      2,255    -         
Total 2013 financial liabilities 8,974      6,478     15        31          196      2,255    -         

Contractual receivables
Trade receivables (a) 9,586      2,246     1,600   2,426     3,168   5           133         
Revenue receivables (a) 3,208      3,208     -       -         -       -        -         
Security bonds (a) 71           71          -       -         -       -        -         

Investments, loans and other financial assets
Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term 
deposits 11,100    11,100   -       -         -       -        -         

Total 2012 financial assets 23,965    16,625   1,600   2,426     3,168   5           133         

Financial liabilities
Payables (a) 11,896    9,100     -       -         235      2,561    -         
Total 2012 financial liabilities 11,896    9,100     -       -         235      2,561    -         

2013 Financial assets

2012 Financial assets

Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount

Not past 
due and 

not 
impaired

There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or
impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The following table discloses the contractural maturity
analysis for the Institute's financial assets and financial liabilities.

2013 Financial liabilities

Note (a) Receivables and payables disclosed here as financial instruments exclude statutory receivable and statutory payables.

2012 Financial liabilities

Impaired 
financial 

assets
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26.4 Financial instruments
Fair value estimation 

 Carrying 
Amount 

 Net Fair 
Value 

 Carrying 
Amount 

Net Fair 
Value

 Financial instruments $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 8,154           8,154           5,952           5,952           
Deposits (at call and short term) 33,009         33,009         44,026         44,026         
Investments using the equity method 1,442           1,442           -               -               

Contractual receivables
Trade receivables (a) 5,995           5,995           9,453           9,453           
Revenue receivables (a) 3,107           3,107           3,208           3,208           
Security bonds (a) 141              141              71                71                

Total financial assets 51,849         51,849         62,710         62,710         

Financial liabilities
Payables (a) 8,974           8,974           11,896         11,896         
Total financial liabilities 8,974           8,974           11,896         11,896         

The fair value of unlisted shares are valued as per the terms in the the contracted sale agreement entered into with a third
party during the current year.   

The carrying amounts and aggregate net fair values of financial assets and liabilities at balance date are:

2013 2012

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their fair
values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value and
based on credit history it is expected that the receivables that are neither past due nor impaired will be received when due.

For other assets and other liabilities the fair value approximates their carrying value. Financial assets where the carrying
amount exceeds fair values have not been written down as the Institute intends to hold these assets to maturity.

Note (a) Receivables and payables disclosed here as financial instruments exclude statutory receivable and statutory payables.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Institute is the
current bid price.
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26.4 Financial instruments (Continued)
Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(a)

(a)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2013  Quoted 
Prices 

 Observable 
Price Inputs 

 Un-
observable 

Inputs 
$’000 $‘000 $‘000 $‘000

Financial assets
Investments using the equity method 1,442           -               1,442           -               
Total financial assets 1,442           -               1,442           -               

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Recurring fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet are categorised into the following levels:

The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. 

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
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27 Economic Dependency
As identifed in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,  a significant volume of income from transactions is generated 
through the Institute's performance and service agreements with State and Commonwealth governments.
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BOX HILL INSTITUTE APPENDIX A
FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE A1 - OPERATING STATEMENT

Total operating expenses
Delivery provision and support activity A2               64,980               76,623                  55,016               65,220 
Administration and general services activity A3               35,210               38,022                  29,577               32,723 
Property plant and equipment services activity A4               16,615               20,482                    9,814               12,295 
Student and other services activity A5                 5,817                 7,483                    4,550                 5,550 
Total operating expenses             122,623             142,610               98,957             115,789 

NOTE A2 - OPERATING STATEMENT          

Delivery provision and support activity
Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances               49,383 56,526               40,576 47,961
Superannuation                 4,335 4,826                 3,597 4,136
Payroll tax                 2,355 2,851                 1,984 2,455
Other employee benefits                    446 588                    429 540
Purchases of supplies and consumables                 1,196 2,582                 2,410 3,321
Travel and motor vehicle expenses                 2,703 2,882                 2,528 2,655
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment                 3,229 3,468                 2,830 3,099
Other direct delivery expenses                 1,333 1,424                    662 1,054

              64,980               75,146               55,016               65,220 

NOTE A3 - OPERATING STATEMENT

Administration and general services activity
Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances               17,428 16,857               15,359 14,324
Superannuation                 1,520 1,397                 1,374 1,205
Payroll tax                    888 827                    811 714
Other employee benefits                    425 467                    425 431
Purchases of supplies and consumables                    807 1,168                    661 863
Communication expenses                 1,664 1,838                 1,262 1,254
Fees and charges                 4,474 4,112                 3,999 3,995
Travel and motor vehicle expenses                 1,033 1,224                 1,010 1,174
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment                 1,730 1,649                 1,516 1,441
Other expenses                 5,242 8,484                 3,159 7,322

              35,210               38,022               29,577               32,723 

Consolidated Institute
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT 

Date: 27th February, 2014 Date: 27th February, 2014

 
 

Joanne James
Chief Finance & Accounting Officer
Date: 27th February, 2014

……………………………………… ………………………………………

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

In our opinion, the accompanying Statement of Performance of Box Hill Institute of Technical and Further
Education and the consolidated entity in respect of the 2013 financial year is presented fairly in
accordance with the Financial Management Act.

The Statement outlines the performance indicators as determined by the responsible Minister,
pre-determined targets where applicable, and the actual results for the year against these
indictors, and an explanation of any significant variance between the actual results and
performance targets.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any
particulars in the Statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

Suzanne Ewart Joe Piper
Chair of the Board Interim Chief Executive Officer

………………………………………
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Module Load Completion Rate 1,5

Scheduled hrs assessed and passed or satisfactorily
completed / Total scheduled hrs reported less Hrs
recorded with credit transfer and continuing studies
outcomes

81.96% 81.43%

Participants of 15-24 year olds 1,7 No. of Students within the age group 13,704                                15,935                                    

Participation of 25-64 year olds 1,7 No. of Students within the age group 25,550                                29,189                                    

Student Satisfaction 1,5
Proportion of graduates satisfied with the overall quality 
of learning

83.30% 79.80%

Total Cost per Student Contact
Hour (SCH)

2,4,6 Total funded expenditure (excl Depreciation) / Total SCH $13.60 $12.99

Working Capital Ratio 2,3
Current Assets / Current Liabilities (adjusted for Current
Other Long Term Employee Benefits)

2.29 1.73

Net Operating Margin 2,4 Funded Operating Surplus / Total Revenue (excl Capital) -1.24% 2.54%

Fee For Service Revenue 2
Fee for Service Revenue (excl Sale of Goods)/Total
Revenue (incl Capital excl Sale of Goods) %  

44.37% 42.60%

Revenue per EFT Staff 2 Total Revenue (excl Capital) / Average EFT Staff $129,989 $140,313

Student Contact Hours 1,7 Total no' of student contact hours delivered 8,590,240 10,141,986

Energy Consumption
Percentage reduction in energy consumption for
Electricity, Gas, LPG, Green Power and Heating Oil.

Reduced energy 
consumption for gas by 
13.0%, however 
electricity consumption 
increased 11.8%.

Green power purchases 
of electricity (excluding 
CAE) accounted for 11.4% 
of total purchases. 

To reduce engergy 
consumption year on year

Notes: Explanation of Significant Variances of 10% or more.

Note 7: In response to the reduction in government contribution and changes in Government subsidy levels announced in 2012, BHIG increased fees. As a result,
BHIG experienced an 8.2% decline in total student course enrolments compared with 2012 and a 10.9% decline in Government-subsidised enrolments. This
anticipated decline, however, was exacerbated by a correspondent decrease in the average student contact hour per enrolment and reduced demand for
traditional areas of program delivery. 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Key Performance Indicator Note Definition 2013 Actual 2013 Target

Note 5: Excludes Centre for Adult Education

Note 6: This KPI is not a relevant measure of Institute performance for comparison purposes as a significant proportion of Institute program delivery relates to
commercial fee for service projects that do not have student contact hours as a key deliverable.

Note 2: The Institute's target for measuring performance in 2013 is derived from the board approved budget for 2013.

Note 3: The favourable variance in working capital is as a result of an improved average days outstanding for receivables, lower current payables associated with
construction works in progress and lower current provisions attributable to employee benefits.

Note 4: The unfavourable variance in the net operating margin is due to a reduction in operating income against all targets with lower revenues attributable to
government funded delivery and fee for service program delivery. The reduction in delivery and associated revenues were not fully offset by equivalent reductions
in expenditure with an unfavourable operating margin the result. 

Note 1: The Institute's actual delivery outcomes for the year ended 31 December 2012 represents the target for measuring performance in 2013.
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2013 INTERNATIONAL TRAINING PROVIDER OF THE YEAR

DISCLOSURE INDEX 

ITEM 
NO

SOURCE 
REFERENCE SUMMARY OF REPORTING REQUIREMENT

IDENTIFY 
RELEVANT 

PAGE(S)

REPORT OF OPERATIONS

Charter and Purpose

1 FRD 22D Manner of establishment and the relevant Minister 2, 3

2 FRD 22D Objectives, functions, powers and duties 2, 3

3 FRD 22D Nature and range of services provided including communities served 2, 3

Management and Structure

4 FRD 22 Organisational structure and chart, including accountabilities 26

5 FRD 22 Names of Board members 24, 86

Financial and Other Information

6 FRD 03A Accounting for Dividends N/A

7 FRD 07A Early adoption of authoritative accounting pronouncements 62

8 FRD 10 Disclosure Index 108

9 FRD15B Executive officer disclosures 25, 88

10 FRD 17A Long Service leave wage inflation and discount rates 60

11 FRD19 Private provision of public infrastructure N/A

12 FRD 20A Accounting for State motor vehicle lease arrangements prior to 1 Feb 2004 N/A

13
FRD22

&
SD 4.2(k)

Operational and budgetary objectives, performance against objectives and achievements 27

14 FRD 22D Occupational health and safety statement including performance indicator and performance 
against those indicators 33

15 FRD 22D Workforce data for current and previous reporting period including a statement on employment 
and conduct principles 36, 37

16 FRD 22D Summary of the financial results for the year including previous 4 year comparisons 28

17 FRD 22D Significant changes in financial position during the year 27

18 FRD 22D Major changes or factors affecting performance 27-28

19 FRD 22D Post-balance sheet date events likely to significantly affect subsequent reporting 
periodsemployment. 86
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20 FRD 22D Summary of application and operation of the Freedom of Information Act 1982 32

21 FRD 22D Statement of compliance with building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993 35

22 FRD 22D Statement on National Competition Policy 32

23 FRD 22D Summary of application and operation of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012 32

24 FRD 22D Summary of Environmental Performance. 17, 34

25 FRD 22C Details of consultancies over $10,000 (refer to FRD for information required) 30

26 FRD 22C Details of consultancies under $10,000 (refer to FRD for information required) 30

27 FRD 22D List of certain other information available on request (as specified in the FRD) 32, 35

28 FRD 24C Reporting of office based environmental impacts 17, 34

29 FRD 25A Victorian Industry Participation Policy Disclosures 30, 35

30 FRD 26A Accounting for VicFleet motor vehicle lease arrangements on or after 1 February 2004 N/A

31 FRD 29 Workforce Data Disclosures on the public service employee workforce 36, 37

32 FRD30A Standard requirements for the design and print of annual reports 1-36

33 SD 4.5.5 Risk Management compliance attestation 31

34 SD 4.2 (g) Qualitative and Quantitative information to be included 1-36

35 SD 4.2 (h) Statement that Report prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Directions 32

36 SD 4.2 (j) Sign-off by member of Responsible Body 40

37 CG 10 (clause 27) Major Commercial Ac tivities 32

38 CG 12 (clause 33) Controlled Entities 90 

FINANCIAL REPORT

Financial statements required under part 7 of the financial management act 1984

39 SD 4.2 (a)

The financial statements must be prepared in accordance with:
 > Australian accounting standards (AAS and AASB standards) and other mandatory 

professional reporting requirements (including urgent issues group consensus views);
 > Financial Reporting Directions; and 
 > business rules.

48

40 SD 4.2 (b)

The financial statements are to comprise the following:
 > income statement;
 > balance sheet;
 > statement of recognised income and expense; and 
 > cash flows statement; and
 > notes to the financial statements.

43-99
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Other requirements under standing direction 4.2

41 SD 4.2 (c)

The financial statements must where applicable be signed and dated by the Accountable 
Officer, CFAO and a member of the Responsible Body, stating whether, in their opinion:
the financial statements present fairly the financial transactions during the reporting period and 
the financial position at the end of the period;
the financial statements are prepared in accordance with this direction and applicable 
Financial Reporting Directions; and 
the financial statements comply with applicable Australian accounting standards (AAS and 
AASB standards) and other mandatory professional reporting requirements (including urgent 
issues group consensus views). 

42

42 SD 4.2 (d) Rounding of amounts. 61

43 SD 4.2 (e) Review and sign off by Audit Committee or responsible body 42

44 SD 4.2 (f) Compliance with DTF Model Financial report 43-99

Other requirements as per financial reporting directions in notes to the financial statements

45 FRD 9A Disclosure of administered assets and liabilities N/A

46 FRD 11 Disclosure of ex-gratia payments N/A

47 FRD 21B Disclosures of Responsible Persons, Executive Officer and Other Personnel (Contractors with 
significant management responsibilities) in the Financial Report 89

48 FRD 101 First time adoption N/A

49 FRD 102 Inventories 76

50 FRD 103D Non-current physical assets 77-78

51 FRD 104 Foreign currency 61, 80

52 FRD 105A Borrowing costs N/A

53 FRD 106 Impairment of assets 77-79 

54 FRD 109 Intangible assets 80

55 FRD 107 Investment properties N/A

56 FRD 110 Cash flow statements 47

57 FRD 112C Defined benefit superannuation obligations 87

58 FRD 113 Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates 60, 76

59 FRD 114A Financial instruments – general government entities and public non-financial corporations 90-99

60 FRD 115 Non-current physical assets – first time adoption N/A

61 FRD 119 Contributions by owners 82

62 FRD 119A Transfers through contributed capital 82

63 FRD 120G Accounting and reporting pronouncements applicable to the reporting period 48-69

64 FRD 121 Infrastructure assets N/A
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PART 7 OF THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ACT 1994 (FMA)

65 FMA 49 (a) Must contain such information as required by the Minister. 42-102

66 FMA 49 (b) Must be prepared in a manner and form approved by the Minister. 42-102

67 FMA 49 (c) Must present fairly the financial transactions of an institute during the financial year to which 
they relate. 42-102

68 FMA 49 (d) Must present fairly the financial position of an institute as at the end of the year. 42-102

69 FMA 49 (e) Must be certified by the Accountable Officer for an institute in the manner approved by the Minister. 42

COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LEGISLATION AND SUBORDINATE INSTRUMENTS 

70 Legislation

The TAFE institute Annual Report must contain a statement that it complies with all relevant 
legislation and subordinate instruments, including, but not limited to, the following:

 > Education and Training Reform Act 2006 (ETRA)
 > TAFE institute constitution
 > Directions of the Minister for Higher Education and Skills (or predecessors)
 > TAFE institute Commercial Guidelines
 > TAFE institute Strategic Planning Guidelines
 > Public Administration Act 2004
 > Freedom of Information Act 1982
 > Building Act 1983
 > Protected Disclosure Act 2012
 > Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

35

71 ETRA
s 3.2.8 Statement about compulsory non-academic fees, subscriptions and charges payable in 2013. 31

PRESENTATION OF REPORTING AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Audited Statements of Key Performance Measures (KPIs) must include  
an audited statement of performance for certain KPIs.

72 FRD 27B

Reporting and performance should be presented using KPIs and a signed Performance 
Management Certificate should also be completed.
(The following 11 are the mandatory KPIs)
1. Participation of 15-24 year olds.
2. Participation of 25-64 year olds.
3. Module Load Completion Rate.
4. Student satisfaction.
5. Total Cost per Student Contact Hour (SCH).
6. Working Capital Ratio.
7. Net Operating Margin.
8. Fee for Service Revenue.
9. Revenue per EFT Staff.
10. Student Contact Hours (SCH).
11. Energy Consumption

106-107

OVERSEAS OPERATIONS OF VICTORIAN TAFE INSTITUTES

73

 PAEC and 
 VAGO 

(June 2003 
Special Review 

item 3.110)

 > financial and other information on initiatives taken or strategies relating to the 
institute’s overseas operations.

 > nature of strategic and operational risks for overseas operations;
 > strategies established to manage such risks of overseas operations;
 > performance measures and targets formulated for overseas operations;
 > the extent to which expected outcomes for overseas operations have been achieved.

18, 25, 90
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Index
Awards  6
Board Members  24
Campuses  3
CEO’s Report  10
Chair’s Report  8
Construction Works  35
Community (Connected with)  2
Domestic Highlights  20
Education Alliances  4
Establishment  3
Financial Performance  27
Governance  23
Industry (Connected with)  5
International Highlights  18
Organisational Structure  26
Partnerships  4
School Partnerships  5
Services  3
Specialist Centres  3
Strategic Plan  8
Training Workplaces  3
Workforce Data  36

Glossary 
AIIA Australian Information Industry Association

ACS Australian Computer Society

AMCA Air Conditioning and Mechanical Contractors Association

APTC Australian-Pacific Technical College

ASQA Australian Skills Quality Authority

AVSS Applied Vocational Study Support

BHI Box Hill Institute

BRIT Bendigo Regional Institute of TAFE

CAE Centre for Adult Education

CET Continuous Education and Training

CMPA Construction Materials Processors Association

CPA Certified Practicing Accountant

CQJU Chongqing Jiaotong University

DEEWR Department of Education, Employment and Workplace Relations 

ETREC Electrical Telecommunications and Renewable Energy Contractors

EU European Union

HVAC Heating-Ventilation-Air Conditioning

ICT Information and Communication Technology

ITH Information Technology Hub

KOTO Know One, Teach One

LASH Lighting and Sound Hire

LLEN Local Learning and Employment Network

MiBO Music Industry Business Office

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NECA National Electrical Contractors Association

NSCE Nursing Skills Centre for Excellence

PAL Peer Activity Leadership

PIN Post Secondary International Network

RCCC Refrigeration and Climate Control Centre of Excellence 

RTO Registered Training Organisation

SARP Staff Achievement and Recognition Program

SMART Student Management System

TAE Training and Assessment

TAFE Technical and Further Education

TEQSA Tertiary Education Quality and Standards Agency

VCAL Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning

VET Vocational Education and Training

VETiS Vocational Education in Schools

ZIME Zhejiang Institute of Mechanical & Electrical Engineering
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